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24
14 45
2023 2022
31
14
14 45
2023 2022
725 686
35 39
12 31 760 725
2023 2022
220 259
155 156
517 460
143 132
2,005 2,001
45 57
3,085 3,065
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12 31
2023 2022
3.5 4.0
2.9 3.4
5.0 5.0
2.5 2.5
2023 2022
- 0.25 36 34
- 0.25 37 36
- 0.25 36 35
- 0.25 35 33
- 50 45
- 50 45
2023 2022
- 0.25 12 13
- 0.25 12 14
- 0.25 12 14
2022
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2023 2022
10.8 10.8
5.1 5.3
2023 2022
7 71
2,046,000 2022 1,492,000
28
2023 2022
1,381 1,429
1,382 1,430
2023
1,429
76
124
12 31 1,381

HK
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2023 202
29
2023 2022
909 187
20 38
889 149
2023 2022
10,124 10,495
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2022 9,861 42 65 14 9,982
176 270 442
- - 63 70
2022 12 31 10,037 312 70 76 10,495
2023
52 321 263
- - 115 109
2023 12 31 10,089 79 35 10,124
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
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30
HK
HK
30 30
30 30 14
2022 47,472 95 3,307 1,422 52,114
2022
- - - 3,387 - 3,387
- - 460 - - 460
- - 460 3,387 - 3,847
14 - - - - 1,422 1,422
14 - - - 1,408 - 1,408
14 - - - 1,422 1,422 -
2022 12 31 47,472 365 3,864 1,422 53,131
2023
2023
- - - 3,705 - 3,705
- - 135 - - 135
- - 135 3,705 - 3,570
14 - - - - 1,422 1,422
" . - - 1,408 1,408
14 - - - 1,422 1,422 -
2023 12 31 47,472 230 4,739 1,422 53,871
HK
16.09 2022 16.09 1,422 2022 1,422

HK
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HK
2023
0.0005
12 31 20,000,000,000 10,000,000
0.0005
12 31 20,000,000,000 10,000,000
0.0005
12 31 8,836,200,000 4,418,100
0.0005
12 31 8,836,200,000 4,418,100
2022
0.0005
12 31 20,000,000,000 10,000,000
0.0005
12 31 20,000,000,000 10,000,000
0.0005
12 31 8,836,200,000 4,418,100
0.0005
12 31 8,836,200,000 4,418,100

34 HK
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2022 183 600 417
1,012 1,019

23 _ 23

95 %

940 946

ooz 1z 757 609 1,366
125 18 107

269 - 260

8 40

351 15 336

2023 12 31 406 627 1,033
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2022 25 388 413
h 20 114 134
- - 63 63

30 33

2022 12 31

2023 42 536 578

h 33 428 395
- - 63 63

80 75
2023 12 31 14 941 955
HK HK
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2023 2022
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
2023 2022
50,162 51,212
- 44 -
21 325
50,185 50,887
48,978 49,333
50,185 50,887
99,163 100,220
51 51
31
HEC
2023 12 31 451
2022 12 31 508 21
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30
21
1SDA
2023 2022
31 602 118 484 972 114 858
31 136 64 72 479 37 442
738 182 556 1,451 151 1,300
92 92 - M M -
31
31 26 26 - 86 86 -
31 64 64 - 24 24 -
182 182 - 151 151 -
2023 12 31
6,535 2022 12 31
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2023
12 31
2,680 2,251 32,364 28,578 65,873 50,390
44 - - - 44 44
3,056 - - - 3,056 3,056
5,780 2,251 32,364 28,578 68,973 53,490
394 395 439 80 1,308 593
86
202 201 180 55 638
197 197 172 59 625
72
1,553 - 3,379 13,372 18,304
1,551 - 3,510 14,013 19,074
144 - - - 144
144 - - - 144
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2022
12 31
2,389 3,075 32,851 29,991 68,306 51,426
4,445 - - - 4,445 4,445
6,834 3,075 32,851 29,991 72,751 55,871
292 312 651 103 1,358 900
35
202 202 349 87 840
197 197 340 88 822
471
176 3,378 13,372 16,930
171 3,510 14,013 17,697
16
302 - - - 302
287 - - - 287
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2023 2022
- - 4.06 252
2.71 37,265 2.72 37,333
37,265 37,081
0.03 21 0.03 73
6.25 12,897 5.65 13,879
- 5.88 44 - -
0.88 2,449 0.63 2,381
15,369 16,187
2023 12 31
116 2022 12 31 121
268 2022 12 31 331

2022
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2023
96 1,407
2,272 -
2,368 1,406
1,340 131
950 -
78 1,275
2022
32
189 1,126
2,250 -
2,407 1,124
1,329 986
950 -
128 138
10
2023 2022

10

2022
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2023 12 31 2022 12 31
2023
/
026 -2035 |, o 27,668 602 _ 118 - 125 125 -
2024 -2032 8,493 34 40 -
D027 -2032 0,811 101 - 23 - 13 13 -
2022
/
p023 2085 |, oo 27,668 972 ) 110 7 1,012 1,012 -
D023 2032 7,288 161 - - -
D027 -2032 0,646 217 ) ) ] _
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2023
/
2024 144 - - - - - - -
2023
145 -
2022
/
2023 302 - - - 16 -
2022
286 16
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2023 2022
USD HKD 7.4867 7.4620
JPY HKD 0.0543 0.0703
GBP HKD - 8.9438
EUR HKD 8.5846 8.9349
JPY USD 118.1725 102.0011
GBP USD - 1.3338
13
2023 2022
- 31 602 972
- 31 136 479
738 1,451
- 31 92 41
- 31 26 86
- 31 64 24
182 151
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2023 12 31 2022 12 31
32
12 31
2023 2022
5,832 6,702
21,073 10,412
2023 12 31 31
2022 59
2023 12 31 700
2022 1,627
33
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
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PAH
PAH
45
2023 12 31 PAH
HKLTL
19
27
HEC CAPCO HKLTL
CAPCO LNG
HKLTL HEC 12
HEC CAPCO HKLTL
2022
HEC HKLTL
2023
2022
34
14A

2022 43

LNG

35

HKLTL

12
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2022
2023 12 31
HKLTL 36
HKLTL
2022 11
HKLTL
2022
HEC
HEC
14A

PAH

2022

HEC
2023

184

HKLTL



EDINETOOOO
O00o0oOoooooooo00o0O00ooo0oboOo0noOo(E30309)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

35 HK
2023 2022
62,349 61,463
241 408
62,590 61,871
63 60
64 61
92 95
28 34
62,562 61,837
8,681 8,673
10 33
8,691 8,706
53,871 53,131
30
53,863 53,123
53,871 53,131
2024 19
36
2023 12 31 PAH
33.37 21.00 19.90
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38 2023 12 31
2023 12 31

2024
2024
21 2025
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Financial Statements

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
of the Trust and of the Company

the yaar ended 31 Decemnber 2023

[Expressed in Horg Kong dollars)
2023 2022
Mote § million % miilion
Revanue g 11,406 10,793
Direct costs (5.384) (5,364)
E,022 5,429
Oaher revenue and other net income 7 87 &7
Otter cperaling costs B (1,133) (9E7)
Operating profit 4976 4,509
Finance costs a (1,3860) {9a1]
Profit bafore taxation i} 3616 jn48
Income Tax; L
Current {909) (187}
Datorred 263 14421
(646) {629)
Profit after taxation 2970 2.919
Scheme of Contral ranslers 13{b) 186 a5
Profit for the year attributable to the holders of
Share Stapled Units/shares of the Company 3,156 2,954
Earnings per Share Stapled Unit/share of the Company
Basic and diluted 18 3572 conts 33 43 conts

Thie notas on pages 97 10 170 form part of these condolidated financial statements.

As gxplained in rote 2, the consolidated ficancial statements of the Trust and the consolidated financial statements of the
Comgany are presented togother

Destails of dutributions’dvidends payable (o holders of Share Stapled Unitsshares of the Comgany attributable 1o the profit Tos
thie year are sel.oul in nola 14

HE Electric Invvestmants
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
of the Trust and of the Company

For the year ended 31 December 2073
{Expressed in Hong Kong dollarsh

2023 2032
5 million 5 milicn
Profit for the year attributable to the holders of Share 5tapled Units/
sharas of the Company 3,156 2,954
Othar comprobensive incame for tha year, after tax and
reclassification adjustments
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Defined benafit retirement schemes:
Remeasurermont of net defined bonofit assatfiability s 9
Met deferred tax charged to other comprehensive income 18} 7
29 32
Cash flow hadges:
Effective portion of changes in fair value of hedging mstruments
recognised during the year (4} 4
Cost of hedging — changes in fair value 5 {2)
Met delerred tax credited to other comprehensive income - 1
1 %)
30 27
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Cash flow hedges:
Effecthe portion of changes in fair value of hedging Instruments
recognised during the year (103} 1,023
Reclassification adjustments for amounts transfermed to profit or loss (269} 23
Cast of hedging - changes in fabr value {395} (134)
Cost of hedging - reclassilied 1o profit o los (63) [E3)
Met deferred tax creditedfchamed) to other comprehensive income 115 (e4)
{715} 785
Total comprehensive Income for the year attributable to the holders of
Share Stapled Units/shares of the Company 2A71 3,7€6

The notes cn pages 97 1o 170 lorm part of these consolidated financial statements
As explained in note 2, the comalidated financial statements of the Trust and the consolidated financlal statements of the
Company are presanted ogether
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Financial Staternents

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
of the Trust and of the Company

AL 31 December 2023
[Expressed in Homg Kong dollars)

2023 2022
Hote S milllen 4 million
Non-current assats
Praperty, plant and equipment T4 73.732
Interests in leasehold land held for own Lse 5,033 5,228
16 79,824 78,560
Goaddll 7 33,623 33,623
Interest in a joint venlure 19 895 793
Dervatie financial instruments 16 137 1,450
Employee retirement benefit scheme assets 2THai 968 83z
116,047 115,708
Current assats
Inventones 20 1.003 1446
Trade and other recelvables 21 1,469 1,631
Fuel Clawse Recowery Account i3 - 1,892
Bank deposits and cash 23ia) 21 Er
2,493 5294
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables and contract landities 24 (3.417) (4,821}
Fuel Clause Recowery Account 22 {53}
Curreni portion of bank loans and other interest-beanng borrowings 15 {5} {557)
Bank overdraits - unsecured {44) -
Current tax payable 259(a) (3a9) (149)
{5.118) (5.527)
MNet current labilities (2,625} 233)
Total assets less current liabilities 113,422 115,475
Han-current liabilities
Bank loans and other interest-bearing borrowings 15 (49,447} {50,655)
Cermvatiee financial instrumernts 26 {181) 111}
Customers’ deposits (2,449) (2,381]
Ceferred tax Labilities 20(b) {10,124} (10,495)
Employee retirement benefit scheme labilities 2T} {191} {158)
Ciher non-current iabilities B (1.382) (1,430
(63,774) (65, 2300)
Scheme of Control Fund and Reserve 130ch (6570} {912}
MNet assets 48,978 40,333
Capital and reserves
Share capital 30{b] 4 1
Reserves 48,970 49,325
Total equity 48,978 40,333

Approved and authonsed for ssue by the Boards an 19 KMarch 2024,

Cheng Cho Ying, Francls Chan Lol Shun
{Hrectar [iree for

The niates on pages 97 to 170 form part of these corsalidated financial statements.
As explained in nole 2, the consolidated fnanclal statements of the Trust and the comsolidated financial statements ol the
Company are presented together.

HE Electric nvwestmants
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

of the Trust and of the Company

For the year ended 31 December 2073
{Expressed in Hong Ko i dollarsh

Attributable io holders of
Share Stapled Units/shares of the Company
Proposed/!
daclarad
Share Share Hedging Revenue  distribution/
caplial premiem reserve resene dividend Total
§ midlian {nate 3B (mote 300CH  dnote 300ANTH  Cnate 36X {mite 14)
Badance at 1 Jamuary 2022 8 47472 4 (5131 1,432 43,393
Changes in equily for 2022
Profit for the year - - - 2,954 - 1554
Other comprehensiie InCome - - Tan 32 - B12
Tedal comprehensve ingome - - T80 1,986 - 3,766
Amounis trarstemed 1o the nial
carrying amoaunt of hedped itaims,
netof fax - - 4 A
Final distributionfsecond mterm dhidend
I rerspeet o prvicni yoar appeoved
and paid {see note 1400 - - - - {1,422% {1,422
Interim distributionTiest interim diidend
pald fsee node T4 - - o (1,408 - 11,408
Propased final dstributansecond interim
dividend {zee note 14060 = = (1422 1,422
Balance at 31 December 2022 and
1 January 1023 8 47472 188 (357) 1422 49,333
Changes in equity for 2023
Profit for the yeas - - - 3,156 - 1,15
Cthes comprehensine intome = = {Tay i = (685)
Tetal comprehensive income - = (14} 3,185 - 14aM
Ameaints trarsferred ta the initil
catrying ameaint of hedged ibems,
net of fay - - ] - - 4
Final dstributicnvsecond interim dnidend
In respect ol previous year approved
and paid (e note 140c)) - - - - (1,422) (1.422)
Interim distibutionust interim drdend
pald isee pede T4k - - - {1.408) = {1.408])
Propased final dstribaution&second inlerim
dividend {see note T4k - - - (1.422) 1,422 -
'_I.Hm at 31 December 2023 8 47472 T8 [2) 1422 48,978

The notes cn pages 97 1o 170 lorm part of these consolidated financial statements
As explained in note 2, the comalidated financial statements of the Trust and the consolidated financlal statements of the

Company are presanted ogether.
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Financial Statements

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
of the Trust and of the Company

the year ended 31 Decemiber
|l=| essedd in Horng Kong dollars)

023 2032
Maote § million § miilion
Operating activities
Cash generated from operations 23] 5,460 6,157
Intarest paid (1.264) {875)
Intefest recened 44 £l ]
Hong Kong Prafits Tax paid {165) {544)
MNet cash generated from operating activities 80mM 4,768
liwesting activithes
Paymerit for the purchase of property, pant and equipment and
capital stock (3,972) {5,528)
Capitalised interest paid {307} {233)
M loian bo @ joint venture (115} 1316)
Loan repaid from a joint veniline 13 -
Met cash used in investing activities (4,381) (6,077)
Financing activities
Proceeds from bank loans 23ich 2,500 4,873
Repayment of bank leans 23ich (3,477) {500)
Redempticn of medium term noles 23ich {300} -
Payment of '‘pase labilities 23ich {1) m
Mew cusiomerns' deposits 23ich m 306
Repayment of cusiomers’ deposits 23ich (243) {242)
Distributionsdrvidends paid (2,830) (2,830
Met cash {(used in)/generated from financing activities (4,040) 1,606
Met {decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (350} 297
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 lanuary 325 34
Effect of forsign exchange rate changes 1 13}
Sesh st cashiequivalents w39 Ducwnber 23 &) 00 %S

Thie notes on pages 97 10 170 form part of these comsolidated financial statements.
As explained in nole 2, the consolidated fnanclal statements of the Trust and the comsolidated financial statements ol the
Company are presented together

HE Electric nvwestmants
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Notes to the Financial Statements
of the Trust and of the Company

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless othenwise indicated

1. General information

HE EBactric vsestrmonts Limited (the "Company ] was incorparated in the Cayman llands on 23 Septermber 2013 a5 an
exsmgied company with Bmited liabdity under the Companies Law 2011 {as consofidated and revised) of the Cayman
Istands, The Company has established a principal place of business in Hong Kong at Hongkong Electric Cenre, 44 Kennedy
Foad, Hong Kang. The principal activity of the Company is imvestment holdng.

On 1 January 2014, HK Electric nwvestments (the =Trust™) was constituted as a trust by a Hong Kong law governed Trust
Deed entired into between HE Elactric investmients Mandger Lirmitd (he " Trustee-Manager™, in 8 capacity a3 the
trustee-manager of the Trust) and the Company. The scope of actwity of the Trust as provided in the Trust Deed is limited
1 iveesting in the Company,

Thes Sham Staphod Units structuns comgeises (1) a unit in the Trust; (2) & beneficial intemst in & wpecifically identified
ordinany share in tha Cormpany which is finked fo the unit and held by Trustee-Manager as legal owner in its capacity as
irusiee-manages of the Trust; and (3} a specifically ideniified preference share in the Company which s “stapled” to the
unit. The Shase Stapled Linits are jointly issued by the Trust and the Company and listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limdted (the *Stock Exchange )

2. Basis of presemation

Pursuant to the Trust Deed, the Trust and the Company are each requeed 1o prepare thes own sets of financal statements
on a consolidated bass. The consolidated financia staterments of the Trust for the year ended 21 Decenber 2023 comprise
the corisolidated financial statements of the Trust, the Company and its subsidiarias ftogether the * Trust Group®) and

the Tiust Group’s itenest in 4 joint venture. The comsolidated finandal stitements of the Company for the year ended

31 December 2023 comprise the consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidianes (fogether the
“Group”] and the Group's interest in a joint veniure.

The Trust controts the Comgany. and the sole activity of the Trust during the year ended 31 December 2023 was investng
in the Company. Therefore, the consolidated results and financial position that would be presented in the consolidated
financual statements of the Trust are identical 1o the consolidated rewlts and financial pouitien of the Company with the
only differences beng disciosures of share capital of the Company, The Dwectors of the Trustee-Manager and Directors of
the Company believe that it & clearer ta present the consalidated financla’ statements of the Trust and of the Compary
togethar. The consolidated financizl statements of the Trust and the consolidated financial statements of the Company are
presented together to the extent they ane ientical and are hereinalter relerrea as the “consolidated financial Raterments
of the Trust and of the Company™.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement

of finandal postion, consolidated statement of changes in equity, conschdated cash flow statemnent, maierial sccounting
policies and the related explanatory nformation are comman to the Trust and the Compary, Information specilic to the
Comgany are disclosed sepasately in the relevant explanatory infoarmation in notes to the consalidated financial statements,

The Trusl Group and the Group are elened as the “Groups®.
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Financial Staternents

Notes to the Financial Statements
of the Trust and of the Company

(Expressed in Horg Kong dollams unless otherase indicated)

3. Material accounting policies

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements hawe been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financia® Reporting
Standards ("HEFRSS™), which is & collective term that includes all applicable ndbidual Hong Kong Financial Reparting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HEASs™ b and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (" HEICPA® L accounting principies generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
nequirements of the Hong Kong Companies Crdinance. These financial statements also comply with the aoplicable
dclosune provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited,
Material accounting poficies adopted by the Groups are disclosed below,

The HKK PA has ssued a number of amendments to HEKFRSSs that are first eHectve or available for early adoption
fior the current accounting pericd of the Groups. Nots 4 provides infosmation on any changes in accounting polickes
fesulting from initial application of these dewslopmants to the axtend that they ara relavant to the Groups for the
current and pnor accounting percds reflectad in these finanoal statements

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The measurerment basis ised in the preparation of the fnancial staternents 14 the historical cost basis except as
oxplained in the accounting policies set out belomer.

The preparation of fmancial statements in canformity with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estrnates and aswenptions that atfect the applicaton of pelicies and reported amounts of assats, izbilities, incoma
and expenses. The estimates and assocated assumptions ane based on histoncal expenence and vanows other factors
that ane betheved to be reasonable under the ciroumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the
judigaments about camying valuss of awsets and Eabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual
resulfts may ditter from these estimates

The estimates and wnderlying assumplaons are renevwed on an cngaing basis, Revisons 1o accounting estimates ane
recognised in the persod in which the estimane is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revison and futune penods if the revision affects bath current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFR5s that have significant sffect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty ae discussed in note 37.

HE Electric Bwastments Sneal Hegooer J023
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{c) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entibes controlled by the Groups. The Growps control an entity when the Groups are expased, or
e thee g, To vanable returns from thelr smvohaement with the entity and have the ability 10 affect those reunns
through their power aver the entity. When assessing whether the Groups have powes, only substantive rights (held
by the Growps or ather parties] are considersd.

Ivvestmenits in sulbsidianes are comsolidated info the consobdated financal statements from the date that controd
comrences until the date that eontrol ceases. ntra-group balances, transactions and cash lovs and any wriiealsed
prafits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated & full = preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised |osses resutting from intra-group transactons are ebminated m the same way as unrealisad gains but only
1o the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Changes in the Groups” intefests in a subsidiany that do not result in a loss of control are acoourted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjstments are made 1o the amounts of controfing and non-contralling interests within
comolidated equity 1o refiect the change In relative interests, But no- adjustments are made to goodwil and no gain
of loss o recognised.

When the Groups ke control of & subsidiary, it i socounted foras a daposal of the entire ivtersst in thal subsidiary,
wath a resulting gain or [oss being recognised i profit of loss. Any mterest retasned wn that former subsadiary at the
date when control ks lost is recognised a1 fair value and this amount ks regarded as the fair value on initlal recognition
of a financial assel or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in a joint venture o an
aSs0Ciane.

I the Company’s statemant of finansal pesition, imvestments in subsdiare are stated ol cost hess impalment keses
{see note 3{hiGi.
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Financial Staternents

Notes to the Financial Statements
of the Trust and of the Company

(Expressed in Horg Kong dollams unless otherase indicated)

3. Material accounting policies {continued)

(d)

(e

loint venture

A joint venture i an armangement in which the Grougs of the Comgpany have joint control, whereby the Groups or
the Cormpany have the nghts 1o the net assets of the arrangement, rather than nghts to its assets and obligations for
15 Eabilitles.

Aninterest in a joint venture & accounted for using the equity method, undess it is classifiod as held for salo tor
inchuded m a disposal group that & classified as held for salel, It is natially recorded at cost, which includes transaction
costs Subssquently, the consolidated financial statements include the Groups® share of the prafit or loss and cther
comprehensive income of that investes. until the date on which jeint cantrol ceases,

When the Groups” share of koszes excesds ther mterest in the joint venture, the Groups’ interest s reduced to nil and
recognition of further loses is dscontinued except 1o the exlent that the Groups have mcourred lagal or constructive
abdgations or mads payments on behalt of the investes. For this purpose, the Groups' interest is the carying amount
of the investment wnder the equity method, together with any other long-term interests that in substance form part
of the Groups' net imeestment in the joint venture, after applyng the expacted oredit loss (TECL") model to such
ather kang-term interests where applicable (see note I

Undeakied gaing ariung from trantactions vath equity-accaun tid imestes are eiminaled against the investment 1o

the extent of the Groups’ nterest in the investee. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised
gains, but only 1o the extent thare |5 no evidence of Impairment.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess af:

{il  1he aggregata of the fair vahie of the consdaration transferred; over

{iiy  the net fair vatue of the acguanes’s identifiable assets and llabdises measured as at 1he acquisiton date.

When (¥} is greater than (i}, then this excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain
purchase.

Gsnodwill arising on acquisston of businesses s measured at oost less accumulated impairment losses and s tested
annually for impairment (see note I(hKii.
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(f} Property, plant and equipment, interests in leasehaold land and depreciation and amortisation

(1]

i)

(i)

()

i)

{id

Property, plant and equipment induding night-of wse assets arfgng from leases over leasehold properties where
the Groups arg not negistered owmer of the property interest, other than assets under construchon, ane staled
at cost hess accumulated depreciation (see note il and any acoumulated impairment losses

(zew note 2N

Assets under consiniction are stated at cost less impairment lesses (see note 3thi), and ane not depriciated,
Adsats under constriction are translefrad 1o approprate class of property, plant and egquipment when
completed and ready for use.

The cost of seli-constructed ltems of property, plant and equipment indudes the cost of material, direct
labour, the initial estimate, whera relevant, of the oosts of dismantling and remowing the Bems and restoring
the site on which they are located and an aopropriate proportson of production averheads and borrowing costs
(see note 3L

Subsequert expenditure to replace a component of an item of progerty, plant and equiprment that &
accounted for separately, or o improve its operaticnal performance s induded in the kem's carrying amount
o recognised a5 @ separale ilem as appropriate when itk probable that (uture economic benefits in excess of
the onginally assessed standard of periormance of the existing asset will flow to the Groups and the oost of the
fem can be measured reliably. All cther subsequent expenditure & recognised as an expensa in the penod in
which it Is incurred.

Gains o losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of peoperty, plant and equipment are
determinied a3 the difference between the net disposal procesds and 1he cairying amount af the Mem and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Leasehold land held for cwn use is staled at cost less accumulated amorsabon (see note 3T} ard
irmpairmient losses (see note 3(hHi,

The cost ol acquiring interests in leasehold land &5 amortised on a siraight-line bask over the shorier of the
estimated useful lives of the leased assets and the unexpired loase term
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! Fnancial Staternents

Notes to the Financial Statements
of the Trust and of the Company

(Expressed in Horg Kong dollams unless otherase indicated)

3. Material accounting policies {continued)

{f} Property, plant and equipment, interests in leasehold land and depreciation and amortisation
{eantinued)

(viily Depreciation is caloulated 1o write off the cost of tems of property, plant and equipment ks their sstmated
residual value, if any, userg the straight-line method over their estmated wseful Ives, ard is generally
recognised In profit or less,

The estemated wseful lives for the current and comparative period are as folows:

‘Years
Cable tunnels 100
Buildings &0
Ash lagoon and gas pipeline 60
Transmission and distribution equipment, overhead lines and cables 2]
Generating plant and machinery 35
Gas turbines and gas turbine combined cyclie £l
Mechanical meters 30
Photovoltaic syslams 25
‘Wind turbines 0
Electronic meters, microwave and optical fibre equipment and
trunk radio systems 15
Furmiture and fixtures, sundry alant and equipment 10
Computers Sto 10
Maotor vehicles and marine eraft EE
Werkshop tools and office equipment 5
Properties leased lor cwn use Sharter of the unexpired term

of lease and the properties’
evtimated useful life

Immovable assets are amartised on a straight-ling basts-over the unexpered lease terms of the fand on which
the immovatds assets are siuated if the unespired lease terms of the land ane shorter thas the estimated useful
Inves ol the immoiable assets.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and eguipment have ditferent useful lives, the cost of the property,
plient and eguipmient |5 allecated on o reasonalile bass Betwesn the parts aid sach part & depreciated

separately. Deprecation methods, useful kées and residuad values, if any, are reviewed 21 each reporting date
and adpsted if appropriate,
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(g} Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Groups assess whether the contract is; or contains, a bease. This is the case if the
contract comweys the nght 1o control the use-of an sdentified asset for a penad of me in exchange Tor conssderation
Control 15 conveyed where the custamer has both the right 1o direct the use of the idenified asset and to oitain
substantially a8l of the economic benefits from that use

At the lease commencement date, the Groups recognise a rght-of-use aset and a bkease llatdily, except for
short-term laades that have a lease term of 12 months oF lets and leases of low-value sSiete. When the Groups snte
into a lease m respect of a low-value asset, the Groups decide whether to capdtalise the lease on a lease-by-lease
basis. If not capitalised, the associated lease payments are recognitsed m profit or loss on a systematic basis over the
lease team

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease Kability is initially recognised at the present value of the lease payments
payabla over the lease term, discounted wsing the interest rate implicit in the laase or, if that rate cannot be readily
derermined, using a relevant incremental borrowing rate. After indtial recognition, the lease kability s measmed at
arrartned cost and interest expense o caloulated wing the effectve miterest method,

Thie right-of-use assel recogrised whisn a leass & capitaioed is initially measured al cost, whach comgpeises the initial
armount of the ease liabiity adpssied for any kease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any
Initial direct costs Incurred and an estimate of costs 1o demantle and remove the underiing asats or 1o restore
the underlying asset or the site on which it s located, bess any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset Is
subsequently stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and imparment losses (see notes 300 and (hiE]).

Thie lpase Kability & rereatured whieh thers B 6 change in Tutuse base payments arng from a change in an index
of rabe, or there is a change in the Groups’ estimate of the amount expected to be payatde under a residual value
quarantes, or if the Groups change their assessment of whather the Groups will exercise a paerchass, extensaon or
termination option. When the lease Hability s remaasured in this way, a cormesponding adjustment is made to the
carrying amount of the nght-al-use asset, or B recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amaoont of the right-of-use
assel has been reduced to zeno.

Thiz lease Kability is also remeasured when there is a lease modification, which means 3 change in the scope of a
bease or the consideration Tor @ lease that i not orginally provided for i the lease contract, if such modification
& not accounted for as a separate kaase. In this case the |ease Kability = remaasured based on the revisad lease
payrnents and lease term uting a revied disoount rate ot the offective date of the modification,

The current portion of long-tenn kease llabdies (s determaned as the present valie of contracival payments that ae
due to be sattled within 12 months after the reporting period.
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| Financial Staternents

Notes to the Financial Statements
of the Trust and of the Company

(Expressed in Horg Kong dollams unless otherase indicated)

3. Material accounting policies {continued)

fh) Credit losses and impairment of assets

!

Credit losses from financial Instruments

Ther Groups recogng a loss allvance for ECLS on the finandal assets measuned al amortsed cost (nchudng
cash and cash equivalents, trade and other recevables and 'oan to a joint venture)

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are o probability-weolghted estimate of crodit lesses, Crodit kesses oo measuned as the present valuo of all
expecied cash shortfalls bahween the contractual and expected amounts.

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using the following rates if the elact = malerial

- trade and other receivables and fued rate financial assets; effective interest rate determined at initial
recogREticn of an approximation thereod

- wariablo rate financial assets: current effectve interest rate

Thae manamum pencd conssdered when estimating ECLS is the maximum contraciual penod o which the
Groups are exposed o oredit sk

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

- 12-month ECLs: thess are the partion af ECLs that rasult from defaul: events that are possible within the
12 months after the reporting date (of 4 shener perod i the expected life of 1he Instrument |4 leds than
12 months); and

- lifstirme ECLs: these are the ECLS that fesult from 3l possible defaull events over the sxpectad ives of the
ibeeris to wehich the ECL model apphies.,

The Groups measure loss allowaenoes al an amount equal io lletime ECLs, excepl for the loflowang, which are
meaured a1 12-month BCLs:

= financial instruments that are determined to have kow credit risk at the reporting date; and

= gther financial instruments for which credit rsk (i, the nsk of default occurnng over the expected life of
the financial instrumenit has not increased significantly since initial recognition,

Loss allcrances for trade recefvables ate alweays measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs
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Significant increases in credit risk

Ir: assessing whather the credit risk of a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition
and when measunng ECLs, the Groups consider reasonable and supporable information that is relevant and
avallable without undue cost or effort. This indudes both guantitatve and gualitatve information and analysss,
based on the Groups” histancal expenence and informed credit assossmant, that includes ferward-looking
information.

The Growps consider a financial asset to be In default when i} the debtor is unlikely to pay its oeait obligations
1tx the Grawps in full, without recourse by the Groups 1o actions such as realising securty Of any is held); or

{ii} the recetvables are 90 days past due and the dabtor does not respond 1o the Groups' collection acthities as
histanical expenencs indicates that receivables meel those oilténa afe genedally not reooverable,

ECLs are remeasured a1 each reporting date to reflect changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk since
initial recognition. Any change in the ECL amaunt is recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss.
The Groups recognise an impairment gan of loss for all finandal istruments with a comesponding adjustmeant
to thesr carmying amount through a boss allowance acooint.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A1 each reporting date, the Groups assess whether a financial asset & credit-lmpaieed. A financal asset is
credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estmated futura cash flows of
thie financial asset have oocumed

Evidence that a financial asset & credit-impatied indudes the following obtenable swents:

= sgnaficant financlad difficulties of the debior

- abreach of contract, such as a default or beng more than 30 days pasl due;

- the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Groups on tesmis that the Groups would not consider
othenwise,

= Itk probable that the delbtor will enter into bankruptcy or other fimancial regrganisation; or

= the disppearance of an active market for a security because of financal difficuftios of the issuer,
Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is veritien off to the extent that there (s no realstic praspect of
recovery. This i gensrally the case when the Groups determing that the deblor coas not have atsels o sources

of income that could generate suffickent cash flows 1o ropay the amounts sublect to the wiite-off

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that wias previously written off are recognised a5 a reversal of impatrment in
peodit or lost in the period in which the recovery oours
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Financial Staternents

Notes to the Financial Statements
of the Trust and of the Company

(Expressed in Horg Kong dollams unless otherase indicated)

3. Material accounting policies {continued)

{h) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

{iiy

(i}

Impairment of other nan-curfent assets

Al each reporting date, the Groups mview The camyng amounts of their non-financial assets (other than
Imventonias) to determing whether there & any indication of impairment. f any such indication exists, then the
aset’s recoverable amount is estmated, Goodwill s tested annually for impairmaent.

For impasment testing, assess ane grouped together info the smallest group of assets that genevates cash
inflosars from continuing wse that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assels or cash-generating
units (“CGL" 5}, Goodwall arming from a business combenation i allocated 1a COUs or groups of CGLs that ane
expacted to benefil from the syrergies of the combnation,

The recoverable amount of 2n asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its far value fess costs of
disporsal, Value in use o based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to thesr present value wiing a
pre-tax descount rale that reflects current market asessmients of B time value of money ard the risia speafic
1o the asset or CGL.

An impairment loss i recognised if the camying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount.

Impairment bosses are recognised in profit o loss. They are aliocated first 1o reduce the camying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amownts of the other assess in the CGU on a
pro rata basls,

An impairment koss in respect of poodwill s not reversed. For other assets, an impament loss is reversed only
10 the axtent that the resulting carrying amaunt does not exceed the camying amount that weukd have been
deterrmaned, net of depresation or amortisation, if no impairment boss had been recognised.

Imtarim financial reparting and impairmeant

Under the Rules Govermarg the Listing of Securities an The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Groups
afe equired to prepare an rterim linancal report m comglance with HICAS 34, Inferin francial repor g,

in respact af the first s months of the financial year, At the end of The interim pericd, the Groups apply the
sarmdr impasment testing, recognition and reversal oteria a5 i would at the end of the financal year (see
nofes 3hi) and 3{hD),

Irmgairment koss recagnsed in an nterim pencd in respect of goodwill & not reversed n a stsequent penod.
This is the case even f ro loss, or 3 smaller loss, would have been recognised had the impairment been
assestod only at the end of the financal year 1o which the intenm period relates,
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(i} Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employes benafits are expensed as the related senvice is providad. A Bability s recognised for the amount
expecied 10 be paid if the Groups have a present kegal or comstructive obligaticn 1o pay this armdowent &5 a resull of
past sernce provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated refably.

(i) Retirement scheme obligations

0]

(i)

Defined banafit retirement scheme obligations

The Groups' net obligation in respect of delined benelit retirement schames bs caloulated separately for each
scheme by estimating the amount of future benefit that employess have sarmad in retiarn for thelr senace in
the current and prioe pericds; that benefit is discounted to determine the present value and the far value of
ary schime assets 15 deducted. The discount rate ks the yield a1 the end of the reporting penod on Hong Kong
tpacial Administrative Region Government Exchange Fund Motes that Faws maturity dates approximating the
terms of the Groups' oblgations. The cattulation s performed by a qualified actuary using 1the ~Progected Unit
Credit Method”.

VWhefe the calculation results in a benefit to the Groups, the assel recognised ks limited 1o the prasent value of
economic benefits available in the form of ary future refunds from or reductions in future contributions to the
defined benefit retirement scheme,

Hemeasurernents, compnsng actuarial gams and bosses, the effect of the dhanges to the asset ceiling [
applicablie} and the returm on plan assets (excluding interest), are reflected immediately in the consolidated
statement of financial pesition with & charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive incame m the peniod
in which they occur, Remeasuremen recognised in cther comprehensive Income is reflected immediately in the
revanue reserve and will not be reclassified to profit or loss.

The Growps deterrming the mi interest experse of income for the penod on the net defined benefit labiity
or asset by apphing the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the begmning of the
anfvual panod ta the net dafined banelit lablity oF aset, takng inlo sccount any changes in the et defined
liabilities or assets dunng the year as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and
ciher expenses related (o defined benefis retirement schemes ane recognised in prodit of loss.

Contributions to defined contribution retirement schemes
Ohligations for contribut:ons to defined contribution refiremant schemes, including contributions payahle

under the Hong Kong Mandatery Previdont Fund Scharmes Ordinance, are recognised 5 a0 exporse in prafit o
loss as the related service s provided,

224/340



EDINETOOOO
Oo0O0000000000000000o000000O0ondn(E30309)
Oooooooooooobooooooad

Financial Staternents

Notes to the Financial Statements
of the Trust and of the Company

(Expressed in Horg Kong dollams unless otherase indicated)

3. Material accounting policies {continued)

(k) Inventories
Inwentories are carmed at the kwer of cost and net realisable value.
Coal, stores, fuel ol and natural gas are valued at cost measured on a welghted average basis,
Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories 1o their
present lecation and condition. Cost of inventones recognised as an expense includes the wiite-off and all losses of

imwantaries

Mat reaksable value 15 the estimated selling puice in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs nocessary
1o make the sale.

{l) Trade and other receivables

A receivable i recognised when the Groups have an unconditional rigat 10 receive comideration and ondy the
passage of time & required before payment of that consideration is due

Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing compenent are initially measured at their transaction

price. All recervables are subsequently stated at amortised cosl, wsing the effectee intenest methad and including an
allowance for credit losses (see note 3{(hil,

{m) Interest-bearing borrowings
Interest-Dearing bormowings are recognised initially at far value less ransaction costs, Subsequent to mital
recognition, interest-beating barrowings are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method, Interest
expense |5 recognised in accordanee with the Groups' accounting policy for borrowing costs {see note 3iv)),
A cadl option embedded in a host debt instrument & diosely related to and not separated from the host debt

instrurment if the option's exerdsa price is approdimaiely equal on each exercise date to the amortisad cost of the
st dabl instrument.
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Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are inibally recognised at fair value, and subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the
effect of dacounting wouid be immatenal, in which case they are stated a1 invoice amounts,

Contract liabilities

A contract lialslity is recogrned when the customer pays nanerelundable comsideration before the Groups recognise
the related revenus (see note 3000, A contract liahdity is also recognised if the Growps have an unconditional

rightt 1o recesve nan-refundable comideration before the Groups recognise the related revenue, In such cases, a
comespanding receivable i also recognised (see note (1))

Derivative financial instruments

The Grougs hold derrvative financial sstrurnents 1o manage thesr foresgn currendy and infeqest rale nsk exposurnes
Dervatives are mibially measured at fair value. Subsequently, they are measured at far vahme with changes therein
recognied kn profit or loss, except whire the dervaiives qualify for cash flow hedge accounting isee note 3031,

Hedging

Thee Groups desgnate certain dervatves 45 hedging instrumints to hedge the vanability in cash flows assooated with
haghly probabie forecast transactions arising from changes in foresgn exchange rates and vaniable rate bomowings
{eash flow hedpes), of a5 hedgng instruments to hedge changes in the far value of a recagnsed ansel of liabddy (fair
value hedges).

(i) Fair value hedges
Changes in the fair value of derrratives that are desgnated and qualify as fair value hedoes are recogrised n

profit or loss, along with any changes in the fair value of the hedped assets or liablities that are attributabde to
the hedged risk,
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| Financial Staterments

Notes to the Financial Statements
of the Trust and of the Company

[Expressed in Horg Kong dollars unbiess atherasse iIndicated)

3. Material accounting policies {continued)

{g) Hedging {continued)
{il} Cash flow hedges

Whiere a denvative 15 designated as & cash flow hedgeng instrament, the effectve portion of changes i the
fair value of the derwvative is recognised In other comprenensve income and acoumulated in the hedging
reserve within equaty. The effective pertion that i recognised in othes comprebersnve income is bmited to the
curmdative chamge i far value of the hedged item, detenmined on a present value basts, froam mnception af the
hedge. Any inefiective portion |s recognised immediately in profit or loss,

Farward shermont of fonwand foresgn currendy contracts and foreign curmancy bass spread of finangal
instruments may be separated and exchuded from the dessgnated hedging Instruments. if the Groups exchide
the forward slemment of a forward foresgn exchange contract of the foreign cumency basks spread of a financial
instrument (the *excluded elerments ™} from the designation of a hedging instrement, then the excluded
elernents may be separately accourted for a5 a cost of hedging. The fair value changss of the excluded
elements ae recognised i a separate cormponent of equity to the extent that it relates to the hedged items.

Whien the hedged forecast transaction subsequently results in the recognition of a non-financial asset such as
Inventary, the amount acoumulated in the hedging reserse is removed from the reserve and ls included directly
in the initial cost of the non-financial iterm when it & recognised.

Far all ather hadged forecast transactions, the amount accumalated in tha hedging reserve is redassified
through ether comprehensse mcome 1o prafit or less as a reclassfication adjustment in the same penod
o periads during which the hedged expected fubwe cash flows affect profit o ks {such as when inferest
expanss &5 recognised),

If a hedge no longer meets the criteia for hedge accounting or the hedgang instrement 15 scid, expires,

is terminated or is exercised, hedge accounting ks descontinued prospectively, When hegge accounting s
discontinued, the amoun? that has been accumulated in the hadging resarve remains in eguity until the
trarsaction occurs and it s recogrised in accordance with the abave palicy.

If the hedged future cash Tovws B na longer expected 1o oour, the amaunt that has been accumiilsted i the
hedging resene i immediztely reclassified theough other comprahensive income 1o profit or loss.
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(r] Revenue recognition

]

(i)

Regulation of earnings under the Scheme of Control Agreement

The earnings of the Groups' major subsidiary, HE Elecirc, ane reguiated by the HESAR Golernment (the
“Government®) under a Scheme of Control Agreement (*5oCA%) which prowides for a parmitted level of
earmings bated pancipally on & return on HK Blecinc’s capital investment in electricity generation, tranmmisson
and distribution assets ithe ° Permitted Return®™ ) The SoCA also provides for performance based incentives
and penalfies which encourage customes service quality, energy efficiency, demand respanse reduction

and renewable energy development. The Net Retum of HE Blecinc under the SoC A ks determined by
deducting from the Perrritted Retumn interest and excess capacity adjustments, if any, and adiusting for the
abovementioned incentives and penalties. HE Electric & reguired 1o submit detalled Development Pans for
approval by the Governmond which project the key determinants of the Met Return 1o which HIC Boctric will be
entitied ower the Development Plan period.

In November 2023, the Government approved the 2024 - 2028 Development Flan covernng the penod from

1 January 2024 to 31 December 2028. Similar 1o the 2019 - 2023 Development Man, no further Govemmaent
approval is required during this period unless a need for significant Basic Tanff increases, ever and above those
set out (n the Development Plan, s (dentified during the Annual Tanff Review conducted with the Government
under the lerms of the SoCA.

Fuel Clawse Recovery Accournt

Under he SoCA, any difference betwesn the standard cost of fuel, as agreed with the Government, and
the actual cost of fuel consumed is transferred to the Fuel Clause Recovery Account (% Fuel Cost Acoount
Arfustments™),

Fuel Clause Charges (or Rebates) are charged for given) 1o customers by adding 1o {or deducting from] the
Basic Tarnill lo procuce a Net Tanifl payable by custorners and are credited for debited) 1o the Fusl Clause

Hiscovery Accont

The balance on the Fuel Clause Recovery Account at the end of a financial year represents the difference
between Fuel Clause Charges (or Rebates] and Fuel Cost Account Adjustmenits during the year, together with
amy balance browght forward from the prior year and interest thereon based on prevailing market interest
ralies.
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Financial Staternents

Notes to the Financial Statements
of the Trust and of the Company

(Expressed in Horg Kong dollams unless otherase indicated)

3. Material accounting policies {continued)

{r} Revenue recognition (continued)
{ill} Ineame recognition

Income & classified by the Groups a5 revenus when it anmses from 1he sase of secincity, the provisen of seraces
or the use by others of the Groups' assets under keases in the ordinary course of the Groups® business.

Rewenue is recogsed when control over @ product or semice is ransferred to the oustomer at ihe amount of
promesed conmderation to wheh the Groups are eppected 1o be entitled, esxcluding those amounts eollectoed on
behalf of third parties. Rewenue is after deduction of any trade dscounts.

Further details of the Groups' fevenue and other ncome recogibson policies are as Tollows:

(1} Electnoty income s recognised based on the acheal and accrued units of electsdty consumed by
customers during the year at the Basic Taniff, which is the unit charge agreed wath the Govemment
during the Annwal Tarifl Review for each financal year

(2} Eectndty-related income is recognised when the related senvices are rendered,

(3} Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method. The *effective interest raie” is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated furure cash receipis through the expected life of the finandal asset 1o
the gross camying ameunt of the finandal asset. In calculating interest income, the effective interest rate
is applied 10 the gross carrying amoum of the asset (when the zsset is not credit-impaired), However,
for financial assets that have become credit-mpaired subsequent 1o initial recognition, inlerest income is
calculated by applying the effectve interest rate to the amortised cost of the financal asset. if the asset s
no konger cradit-impaired, then the caloulation of interest income reverts to the gross bass

(s) Translation of foreign currencdies

Foreign cumency transactions during the year are transkated into Hong Kong dollars at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates, o at contract rates if foreign currencies are hedged by forward foreign exchange
contracts. Monetary assets and llabdities demominated in foreign curmencies are tramslated into Hong Kong dollars at
the foreign exchange rates ruling a1 the eng of the reporting peniod, Exchange gaims and losses are generally dealt
with in paodit or loss.

Mon-monetary assets and Babilities that are measured in terms of historncal cost in a foreign currency are translated
wsing ihe fereign exchange rates nuing a1 the transaction dates, The transaciion date is the date on which the
Groups initially recognised such non-manatary assats or fabilities. Non-manetany assets and liabifties denominated in
fereign currencies that ane stated ot fasr value are translated using the foreign exchange rates uling at the dates the
fair value was measured.

HE Electric Bwastments Sneal Hegooer J023
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Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equiviaients comprise cash at bank and in hand, demand deposits with Banks and other financial
mstitutions and short-term, highly liquid mvestments that are readily comvertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject 1o an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three manths of maturity
at acquisition. Bank overdratis that ane mpa{.lahle on dermand and fosm an integral pan of the Groups' cash
management are also included a5 a component of cash and cash equivalants for the purpose of the consolidated
cash flow satement. Cash and cash equivalents are ssessed for ECLS in accordance wath the policy set out in
icite IR,

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprses oument tax and defemed tax. It s recognised in profit of loss except to the extent
that it relates 1o items recegnised in other comprehensive income or derectly i egquty.

Curmen] tax comprises The estimated 1ax payable or recenable on e Taabie income o ioss for the year and any
adjustments to the tax payable or recervable in respect of previous years. The amaownt of current tax payabla or
fecenable s the beit estimate ol the tax amount expected to be paid of receled that rellects any undertainty related
o income taxes It s measured using tax rates enacted oo substantively enacled at the reporting date,

Curanl tax assets and Kabllities are offset ondy if certain criteria are met.

Deferned tax s recognised in respect of temporary differences between the camying amounts of assets and Kabilities
fer financial reporiing purposes and the amounts wsed for taxaton purposes. Deferred tax s not recognised for

= lemporary cilferences on the initial recognition of assets or habilites in a transaction thal s not s busness
combination and that allects neither accounting nor taxanle prafit or kess and does naol give rise ta equal
taxable and deductible termporary differences;

= temporary differences related o investment in subsidiares and joint venture 1o the exdent that the Groups
are able 1o control the timing of the reversal of the temparary differences and it % probable that they will nat
reverse in ihe foreseeable future; and

= taxabhe temporary diferences ansing on the mdtal ecognition of goadwall

Deferred tax assets are recognesed for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary differences

to the extent that it is probable that futusa taxabla profits will be 3vailable agamst which they can be usad. Future
taxable profits are determned based on the reversal of relevant taxable temporary differences. If the amount of
taxablke termporary difforenoes is insutficont to recognese a deferred bax assot in full, then future taxable profits,
ad|usted for reversals of existing temporary differences, are considered, based on the business plans for individua
subsatiiaries m the Grougs. Deferred Rax aisats ana reviesved at each repodting date and are reduced to the extent that
it Is ne konger probable that the related tax benefit will be realised; such reductions are reversed whan the probability
of future taxable profits improves.

Deterred tax assets and Babilibes are of et ondy if cortam cnifena are met
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Financial Staternents

Notes to the Financial Statements
of the Trust and of the Company

(Expressed in Horg Kong dollams unless otherase indicated)

3. Material accounting policies {continued)

v

(w)

Borrowing costs

Bomowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production 'of an assat which
necessarily 1akes a substantial penod of time 1o get ready for it intended use or sale are capitalised as parn of the
cost of that asset. Orther bommowing costs are expensed in the perad in which they are incurred.

The capitalsation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset Is being incurred, borrowing costs are beng incurred and actvties that are necessary 1o prepare the asset for
its imtended use or sale ame in progress. Capitaksation of bormowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially
all the activities nacessary to prepare the quaiiying asset for its intended e or sale ane interrupled or complate

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Prewiasand are recognsed when the Groups o the Comparty have a legal o comstructve obigation arising as a result
of a past event, it is probabde that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the cbligation and a
reliable estimate can be made.

Grneraly provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects
current masket assessment of the time value of money and the ricks specific to the liability,

‘Whene it k& not probable that an outflow of economic berefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated

reliably, the cblgation 5 dsclowed a5 a contingent liabdity, unless the prodability of outflow of pcenomic benefits is

remote. Possible obfigations. whose eostence will only be confirmed by the occwrence or non-coourrence of one or
more future events, are also disclosed a5 contingent labilaies unless the probability of outlow of economic benefits
& ramate.

HE Electric wastments 5 neal Hegooer J00
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{x) Related parties
il Aperson; or 3 close member of that person's family, is related to the Groups if that person:
(1) has controd or joint contral over the Groups,
{2} hassignificant influence over the Groups; or
{3} &.a member of the key management parsonnel of the Gioups.
fil)  Anentity is related to the Groups if any of the following conditions applies:

(1) The entity and the Groups ame members of the same group (which means that each pasent, subsidiany
and fedlow subsidiary fs related to the others).

(31 Dne entity 15 3 joont vemure o an assodiate of the other entity (or a jaent venture o an assodiate of a
member of @ group of which the cther entity s a member),

{3} Both entities are joint ventures of the wams thind party.
{4} Dne entity Is a joint venture of a third entity and the ather entity & an assoclate of the third entlty.

(5} Theentity & a post-employment benedit plan for the benefit of employees of either the Groups or an
entity related to the Groups.

(6} The enfity 5 controlled o jointly controlled by a person dentifed in note 3K,

{7} A percon identthed in note 3G 1) has ssgnificant influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(B} The entity, or any member of a group of which it = a part, provides a key management personnel services
to the Groups

Chose members of the family of a parson are those family members who may be expected to Influence, or be
infasonced by, that persan in theer dealings with the entity.

ly) Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported i a manner conssstent with the internal reparting provided o the chie! operating
decison-maker of the Groups for the purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment
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Financial Staternents

Notes to the Financial Statements
of the Trust and of the Company

(Expressed in Horg Kong dollams unless otherase indicated)

4,

Changes in accounting policies

(a)

(b)

Mew and amended HKFRSs

The HEIPA has issued a number of smendments 1o HEFRSS that are first effectivie for the cument accounting
penod of the Groups. OF these, the following amendments to HKFRSSs are relevant 1o the Trust's and the Company's
consolidated fimancial statements:

- Amendrments toHKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2, Disclosure of Accounting Policios
- Amandments 1o HKAS 8, Definition of Accounting Estimates
=~ Amendments 1o HKAS 12, Deferred Tax Related fo Assets and Labiities Arsing from a Smgie Transaction

The agoplion of thase amendmants does not have a material impact on the Groups® results and financial pasitions
tor the curnent or pros penods. The Groups have not appled any new standard, amendment or mterpretation that s
not yet effective for the currant accounting period,

Mew HKICPA guidance on the accounting implications of the abolition of the MPF-LSP
affsetting mechanism

Im June 2022, the Gowernment gazetted the Hong Kong Employment and Retirerment Schemes Leguslation (Offsetting
Arrangement) (Amandmant) Gedinance 2022 (the *Amendment Ordinance®), which will come into effect fram

1 May 2025 (the "Transition Date”) Once thi Amendment Ordinance takes effect, an employer can no longar

use any of the accrued benefits derrred from its mandatory contnbutions to mandatony provident fund (* MPF®)
scheme to reduce the long senice payment (*L52"} in respect of an employee's senice from the Transition Date (the
abolition of the “affuetting mechanism” L. In addition, the LSP in respact of the service befare the Transition Date

will be ca'culated hased on the employes’s monthly salary immediately befose the Transition Date and the years of
service up bo that date.

Im July 2023, 1he HEICPA published ~Accounting implications of the abolition of the MPF-LSP affsetting mechanism
in Hong Kong™ that provides accounting guidance melatng to the effsetting mechanism and the aboliton of the
mechanien, In particular, the gusdance indicates that entities may acoount for the accrued benefits derved from
mandatony MPF contributions that are expected to be wied to reduce thie LSP payable 10 an employes a5 deemed
comnbutions by that employee 1owards the LSP.

Howvever, applying thas approach, upon the enactment of the Amendmernt Ordinance in June 2022, it & no longes
permissbie 1o apply the practical expedient in paragraph 930} of HKAS 19 that previously allowed such deemed
conrtibutions o be recognised as reduction of service cost [negatve senvice costh in the period the contriblions were
made; instead these deamed contribautions should be attributed to penods of service in the same manner a5 the gross
LSP benafit

To better refiect the substance of the abolition of the offsetting mechanismn, the Grougs have changed its accounting
podcy in connection wath its LSP hability and has appled the above HKICPA guidance retrospectively. This new
HEICPA guidance dioes not have a matetial mpact on the Groups® results and financial positions fer the curren or
i perods.

HE Electric wastments 5 neal Hegooer J00
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5. Revenue

The principal activity of the Greups is the generation and supply of electricity 1o Hong Kong kland and Lirmma sland.
Dizaggregation of revenue by type of output and sernces is analysed as follows:

2023 2022

5 millian § milicn

Saes of electmoty 1321 10,724
Less: concessionany discount on sales of elecincity {7} (&)
11314 10,718

Electramy-related moome 92 5
11,406 10,793

6. Segment reporting

The Groups have cne reporting segment which is the generation and supply of etectricity to Hong £ong bland and Larnma
Istand, All segment assers are lecated in Hong Kong. The Groups' chief operating decishon-maker reviews the consolidated
results of the Groups for the purposes of resounce allocation and performance assessment. Therefore, no additional
reparable scgment and geographacal informatson has been presented.

7.  Other revenue and other net income

023 022
5 million § millicn
Interest income on fnancial assels measured at amortised oost a4 30
Sundry income 43 =1
87 &7
B. Other operating casts

2023 2022
5 millian § milicn
Acministratve expenses, government rent and rates an 348
Statt costs in relation to corporate and admanistrative supports 238 234
Prowiseoms. for asset decomemissioning cblgatian 76 120

Portion of depreciation and amoriisation of leasehold Land
inchuded in athar cporatng costs 222 197
Het boss.on disposal and wntten off of property, plant and equipment 256 -3
1,133 987
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of the Trust and of the Company

(Expressed in Horg Kong dollams unless otherase indicated)

9. Finance costs

2023 2022
S million 5 million
Interest on borredngs and other finance costs 1,761 1,287
Loss: inferest expense and other finance costs capitaksed to
assets under construction {366) 293)
interest expense randerred 1o fuel costs {35) {33)
Tata! interest experse arising from borrenwings and other finance costs 1,360 951

Imterest expense has been capitalised at an average rate of approximately 3 3% (2022 2 7% per annum for assets under
conglruction,

10. Profit before taxation

2023 2022
5 million § milion
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging:
Deprecaation
= owned property, plant and equipment 2,904 2,923
- properies [pased for own use 1 1
Amortisation of leasshold land 196 196
Experves of shorl-term leases 5 5
Conts of mwentories 6,867 8,424
wirite down of invenonss 10 23
Staff costs T34 Ta5
Net loss on deposal and witten off of property, plant and equipment 256 as
Aumlilor's remuneration
~ gt and audit related services 5 5
- non-audit sarvices (see note below] 1 1

Auditor's remuneration for non-audit sendces amounted to $785,000 (2022, $860,000).

HE Electric wastments S ooeal Heg
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11. Income tax in the consolidated statement of profit or loss

(a) Taxation in the consclidated statement of profit or loss represents:

2023 2022
S millkan § milicn
Currant tax
Provesion for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year 909 187
Deferred tax (see nate 2500
Crrigination and rversal of termparary difforences (263) 412
645 629

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2023 is caloulated at 16.5% (2022 16.5%) of the sestimated assessable
prafits for the year, except for one subsidiary of the Groups which &5 a qualifying comporation under the two-tiered
Profits Tax rate regame.

For this subsidiany, the fist $2 miion of assessable profits se taxed ot 8 25% ad the remasnng msesabie profis
are taed at 16 5% The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for this subsidiang was calculated at the same basis in
2022,

Pursuant to the rules and regulations. of the Cayman [slands and the British Wingin Istands, the Groups are exempt
from any income tax in these jursdictions.

(b} Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit at applicable tax rates:

2023 1032
5 millkon 5 mallion
Profit before taxaton 3,616 3,548
MNotional tax on pralit before taxation, calculated at the Hong Koang
Frodits Tax rate (see nate below) 547 58S
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses B2 il
Tax effect of non-taxable incoms (5} 5
Tax effect of recognition of preveously unrecognised temporary
differences (28} 15)
Tax effect of special rebates - (16}
Actual tan expense 646 629

For ihe year ended 31 December 2023, the notlonal tax |s caloulated al 16.5% (2022 16.5%). excepi for one
subsadiary of the Groups whidh is a qualifying corporation under the two-tiered Profits Tax rate regeme. For this
subsdiary, tax on the first 52 mabon of profits o calculated at 8.25% and tax on the remasneng profits is caloulated at
16.5%. The notional tax of this subsidiary s cabculated at the same basis as 2022,
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Notes to the Financial Statements
of the Trust and of the Company

(Expressed in Horg Kong dollams unless otherase indicated)

12. Directors’ emoluments and management team remuneration

Directors” emoluments comprise paymients 1o Directors by the Campany and 5 subsidianes in connection with the
management of the alfairs of the Company and its subsdiares. The emoluments of each of the Directors of the Company

are &% follows
Bale salaries,
allowances. Retirement ] ot
ared ather scheme Taital Toead
Fees benefis ™ contributions Beauses  amolumants  emouments
Mazme of Direciors § million § millica § millicn § millea § milliza 1 miliony
Ewecuthve Directors ™
Fok [in Wirg, Carneg ™
Chustrmen o 14 - 152 1
Wan(hi Tin ™
ol Bt Cffcis a4 &1l . L NnE M3
Cheng Cha Ying, Francs B
Chsef Empruive Officer iz 49 - % w03 65
Chan Lo Shun oo EL) . . i 4
Chen Dackiss ® - . - . - 13
K Ying Leung 54 oS 188 o 14 AR E
Winq uasharg * o 18 0z o am 0B
Nor-executive Direclors
Vidai TEL™
Depoty Chafman i the Company Board ooz LY - - i %
Fahad Hamad A K Al-Wddhamad i) - - - ooy oar
Reonalf Joseph Aol ® 04 i . . on ox
[usan Glargming - - - - - am
D trvend Kamlk i) . & - oy oar
Wang Tyan ™= oo ooy an
e Guengrhag oa? - - = oy any
Independent Ron-exerative Direcion
Fong Chi Wi, Ml 79 on oo - - LA o3
Ko Poh Wiah @ o4 - - - o au
Kwan (i Cheong ® li:] a3 - o an
L= Lan Yea, Francs @@ ole LiEiES - - e {13
Gemge (o Magns oo oo - - o an
Deonsid Jetiey Roperts 1 ole am - - nir an
Raiph Rymond Shea ™ - - - - - am
Altemate Directors
Woo Mafong, Susan
{afars Chow oo Mo Fong, Susan] ™ - an - - PLES o
Franit john St ® - amd - - ol filic]
Total for the year BEH 168 Fri ] [ ] n.ar B
Teotad for the veae 2002 1 FiL] i (ERE] BH
HE Electric Bwastments Sneal Hegooer J023
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Senior managemsent of the Groups comprise a Executive Directon

Membar of the Tnstes-Manager Audit Commities and the Company Audit Cnmmithas

Member of the Remaneraton Commities.

hember of the Nominaton Committea.

Mermber of the Sustanalaiity Comenities

An Altermate Director 1o Mr, Vicioe TE U

Ratired a0 | rdepandant Mor-exeoutve Direcier and ceased 1o bo ks of thie B Committes with affect fram
18 May 2022

Appointed as Eeecutvs Direcior wath effect from 27 duly 2022

Resigned as Execuritve Drector with effedt from 22 July 2022

Sppointed a5 Non-auegutive Direcior with efiect from 9 Sepbember 2072

Resigred as Non-ovecutve Direcior with effect from 3 September 20232

Retired as Executve Director ard Chief Executive Officer, and concurrently ceased to be the Chairman of the Sustainabilty
Commutzon with effect from 1 July 2023,

Appointed a5 Chief Exeoutive Officer and the Chairman of the Sustsinability Comenittes with effect Trom 1 July 2003,
Appaintad a5 Executve [lirecior ard member of the Sustainability Committes with sffect from 1 July 2023

Coased 10 act a5 Alternale Director to kr. Fog Kin Mng, Canning with offect from 1 July 2003

Other benadits include electricity alowancon fo Directon for netidendial use For Dinectons who s employees of the Groups, ather
bremeedits akse includr Irsurance and medical benefits entitled by the employes of the Groups,

Th five: highest paid indsscuals of the Groups included three directors (2002 twaol whose total emolumants an
shawn above, The remuneration of the other two indniduals (2022: three] who comprse the five highest paid
Incividhuals of the Groups b sel out below:

2023 2022

% million 4§ malicn

Basic salanes, allowances and other benefits 7.48 9.76
Retirenent scheme contributions 098 1.32
Bonuses 192 3E6
1138 14.74

The total rermuneration of management team, Including the two individuals (2022: three) who comprise the five
haghest paid individuals in note (a) abowe & within the following bands:

55,000,001 - $5,500,000
35,500,001 - $6,000,C00

2023 2022

Number Humber

41,500,001 - $2,000,000 1 i
$2, 500,000 - 53,000,000 el i
13,000,001 - §3,500,000 3 ]
$3,500,001 - $4,000,000 5 2
1

1

¥
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Financial Staternents

Notes to the Financial Statements
of the Trust and of the Company

(Expressed in Horg Kong dollams unless otherase indicated)

12. Directors’ emoluments and management team remuneration (continued)

(e} The resnuneration of Directors and management team i as follows:

2023 2022

5 million § million

Short-term employee benefits T3 75
Pest-cmployment banefis 3 ]
76 7

At 31 Decermnber 2023 and 2022 there was no amount due from Directors and management team.

13. Scheme of Cantral transfars

{a}  The financial cperaticns of HE Electric are governed by the SoA agreed with the Government which provides for
HE Electric to eam a Permitted Raturn (see note 3N Any sxcess or deficiency of the gross tanff revenue over the
sum-of total ooerating costs, Scheme of Control Net Return and Scheme of Control taxation charges is transfered
tesfifrom) & Tariff Stabiftaton Fund fromufio) the staterment of peofit or koss of HE Electric. When transfer from the
Tand{ Stabilisation Fund to the statement of profit or loss & reguired, the amount transfemed shall not exceed the
balance of the Tariff Stabilsation Fund. In addition, a change calculated by applying the average one-monih
Haong Kong Interbank Offered Rate on the average balance of the Tarift Stabilsation Fund is transferred from the
staterment of profit o loss of HE Efectric 1o a Rate Reduction Reseve.

Under cument 5004, a Smart Power Care Fund was established an 1 January 2019 with initial funding provided

by the net closing balance as at 31 December 2018 of the Smart Power Fund, which was established pursuant 1o
2013 mud-terrn review af 2000 - 2018 SoCA, to promote energy efficiency and consenation, such s azcelerating
end-use enevgy efficency through programmes designed to help resdential, industral and commercial customers,
and also disadvantaged customens/groups 1o replace or upgrade end-use aoplances 1o more energy-efficlent
alectrical modeks. HK Electric corsented 1o deduct an amount equal o 65% of the Enengy Efficiency Incentive
Amount of cach year dunng the period from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2033 for funding the contribution 1o
the Smart Power Cane Fund provided that there s an Energy Efficency Incentive Amount in respect of that year.

b} Scheme of Control transters (solfrom the consolidated statement of prodit or loss represents:

2023 2022
5 million $ million
Tariit Stabslsation Fund {255) {80
Rate Raduction Reserve n 13

Smart Powver Care Fund
- Prowisional sum ingected in cument yoar 13 =
- Prowisional sum to be injected in the following year 5 -
{188} {35)

HE Electric Bwastments Sneal Hegooer J023
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$32,348 000), was transferred from the consoldated statement of profit or koss, of which $13,000,000 was
mgectied inin the Smart Fovser Cane Fund in 2023 with the remaining 325,297,000 was nduded i the trade and
other payables and contract llebitses as at 31 December 2023 for infection into the Smart Power Care Fund in the

fodionving year,

Morvernants in the Tant Stabilisation Fund, Rate Reduction Resere and Smart Power Care Fund are as follows

£ million

At 1 January 2022

Transfer from Rate Reduction Reserve 1o
Tariff Stabilisation Fund
{see note 1 below)

Transfer (1ofrom the consolidated
staterment of profit or loss

Special rebates

Infection for the year

Dishursement for the year

At 31 December 2022 and
1 January 2023

Transter from Rate Reducton Reserse to
Tariff Stabilisation Fund
(see note 1 below)

Transber (odrom the consolidaled
statement of profit or loss

Irfectian far thi yeat

Disbursement for the year
(sea note 2 befow)

At 31 December 2023

Tariff
Stabilisation
Fund

1,050

13

(255}

630

n

13

13

(13}

n

Ell

Smart Power
Care Fund

3
(18}

7

163}

Total
1,065

[&7)

)
(18}

912

(63)
670

Mt 1 Pursuant 1o SoCA, the year-end babnoes of the Rate Aedurtion Resere of & year has 1o b= trarsfeered to the Tandf

Stabilsation Fund in the loliowing year

Hene 2 Drsbursemsent or the year inchuded special electniony subnidy of 9.5 cents per unit of dectriony whch win ollered to
residendial oustomens comuming 300 uris of electicly of less in a month. Tolal special electricity subsidy prosided in

2023 amounted 1 38,881 000,
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14. Distributions/dividends

fa) The distributable income for the year was as follows:

023 2022
5 millien % million
Andited consclidated prodit attributabile to the holders of
Share Stapled Units 3,156 2,954
After
(i} elirenating the effects al the Adjustments (sae noto 1 belaw) 5206 4,854
i} addingAdeducting)
~ mavement in Fuel Clause Recovery Account 1,945 (1,640
- changes i working capital {803) {41}
= adjustment for employee retirement benefit schemes {18) 10
= laxes paid {169} 1544]
a5% (2,215}
(i1} capital expanditure payment (4,087) (5,;844)
iy} dirducting
~ dieht repayment {1.277) -
- net finance couts (1,527) {1.078)
(2,804} {1,078)
Distributable income 2426 (1,329
{v} adding dscretonary amount as cetermined by the Company Board
purssant to clause 14.16c) of the Trust Deed (see note 4 balow) 404 4,159
Distrioutable income afier adjustment of the discretionany amount 2,830 2,830
Bote § Pursuant to diause 1.1 of the Trust Deed, *Adustments® includes, but ot lmited to () arsfers iofrom the Tanff

Stabdmation Fund and the Rate Reduction Resene under the Scheme of Contral; {ii} unreabsed rovaluation genuiosses,
including impaimmen proveions and reverak of impaimment proeisions; Gil) mpairmeent of goodwi [irecognitian of
negatse goodwil] () matensl non-cash gainsfiosues, (V) costs of sy publc offenng of Shase Stapled Ursts that are
expenied thraugh the comolidated statement of profit or ioss but are funded by proceeds from the Bsuance of wch
Share Siapled Unit, {(n) deprecation and amortsation; {vi) tax charges & shown in the comolidated sEaternent of
profit or loss; and &) net finance iIncomefoosts a3 shown in the corsolidated statement of profit o loss,

Bodn 2 The Trrit Dieed requiret the Tnetse-kanager fon behalf of the Tret) to datnbute 1009 of the deicends,
destnbutions and oiher amounts receseed by the Trustes-hManager in respect of the ordinarny shares from the Company,
aller deduction ol al smounls permitled to be dedwcled of paid under e Trusy Desd.

Moto 3 The detributions recewed by the Trustee-$anager from the Company will be derved from the Group Detributable
Incoime which & referred as audited corsolidsted profit attnbutable fo the halders of Share Stapled Uit for the
redevant financial year or distribution penod, after making adpstments in espect of bems a5 set ot in the Tnast Deed

Mote d In determarung the dstrbuticn amownt, the Cormparry Boadd has taken into sccount 1he Group's finantlal pediormance
achieved during the year and its stable cashifiow from operations, and consider it appropriate 1o adnt the

distributahle income foo the year énded 31 December 202 3, a3 caloulated puncant to the Trust Deed, by the showr
decietionany amount, pursiant 10 dae 14, i) of the Trust Deed

HE Electric wastments 5 neal Hegooer J00
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(b) Distributions/dividends payable to holders of Share Stapled Units/shares of the Company

(c)

attributable to the year

2023 1022
5 million 5 milicn
Intarim distr butionTirst interim dividend declared and paid of
15,94 cents (20221 15.94 cents] per Share Stapled Uinit'share 1,408 1,408
Final distributionssecond interim dividend proposed after the end of
the reponing penod of 16.09 cents (2022 16,09 cents) per
Share Stapled Unitishare 1422 1,422

2830 2830

Far the year ended 31 Decembier 2023, the Compary Board geclaned the payment of a second ntenm dividend

af 16,08 cents per ardinary share (2022 16.0% cents per ondinary share), amouwnting to 51,422 million (2022:
$1.422 million). in lew of 3 final divedend after the end of the reporting period and therefose ra final dividend was
proposed by the Company Board.

For the yvear ended 31 Decembier 2023, the Trstee-Manager Board declared a finad distributson of 16.09 cents per
Share Stapled Undt (20232 16,09 cents per Share Stapled Unitl, amountng to 1,422 millon {2022 97,422 million),
after the end of the reporting period

The final distibutionsecond mtarim dividend declared after the end of the reportng perics s based on the

mumber of Shares Stapled Units‘ordinary shares of the Company of 8,836,200,000 as at 31 Decernber 2023 (2022:
B,8365,200,0004, The final distrbution/sacond interim dividend declared after the end of the reporting pesscd has not
been recognised & a Hability a1 the end of the reportsng pesod

Distributions/dividends payable to holders of Share Stapled Units/shares of the Company
attributable to the previous financial year, approved and paid during the year

2023 2022
5 million § milicn
Firal distributiontsecond interim dividend in respect af the previous
linand ial year, approved and paid during the year, of 16.09 cenls
(2022 16.09 cents) per Share Staplied Unitshare 1,422 1,432
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15. Earnings per Share Stapled Unit/share of the Company

The calculation of basic and diluted earrdngs per Shane Stapled Unitshare of the Company ane based on the profit
attributable to the holders of Share Stapled Units/ordinary shares of the Company ol $3,156 malion (2022; 2,954 millon)
and the weighted average of 8,826, 200,000 Share Stapled Unitstordinary shares of the Company (2022 8,836,200,000
‘Share Stapled Unitsfordinary shares of the Company) in issue during the year.

16. Property, plant and equipment and interests in leasehold land

Flamt, Fitares, Interess in
Site  Properties  machinery fittings laasebald
formation  leased for and  andmotcr  Awets under lamd held
§ milian and buildngs ownuse  equpment webicls construction  Subotal  for own e Tetl
Cost
A1 1 larvary 2022 E2E0 1 k] 1187 N5 22,000 6560 Hw
Ao - | 41 17 541 L] - 550
Trarsler 1,863 - 450 113 LA . 2 =
Disponak 7 {n [T ] - (348 - (344
Ai 31 December 2022 and
{ lanuary 213 W51 1 GAEN 128 1050 87188 6960 LR
Addtion - 1 n 19 24 411 1 41340
Trassler m - Lh ] uy 1540 - = =
Despenaks a8l 1} s )] - 1.2 - (1,308
At 31 December 2023 20,560 4 66,648 1513 10,54 %19 B.961 106,160
Accemulated Sepredation and
amorihation
A5 1 Ly 2007 Ll 1 15,541 35 20684 158 4
Weritten badt on cispota @ i (125 L] E (238 . 235
{harge for the year E3) 1 141 118 - ) 1% i
A1 31 December 2002 and
1 lanuary 1033 4515 1 LA kL - 13,457 1m Pl
Whitten back on eeposas [ i {1.E38) 4 - L65m - esm
Charge fox the yex 619 1 115 133 = 5008 1% ELL]
Al 31 December 2023 s05? 1 1 L0 1] - 408 151 5,35
Met ek value
At 31 December 2023 15,44 3 48138 15} 10514 74, 5033 TR
A1 11 Cecamaer 2007 15,801 i 46400 54 1058 13,73 5 73560

The above are mainly eectricity-related property, plant and equipmenit in respect of which financing costs capitalised
durimg the year amounted to 5366 million (2022 $293 millien),

Depreciation charges for the year inchuded $ 103 million (2022; $85 million, relating to asseis uiilised in development
aclaties, which have been capitalised.

HE Electric wastments S ooeal Heg
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17. Goodwill

{a) Carrying amount of goodwill

2023 2022
5 millbon § milicn

Cest
A1 1 January and 31 December 33.623 33,623

b} Impairment test for goodwill
HE Electric | the Grougs anly cash-generating unit ["C0GUT) to which the goodwill has been allocated.

In the case of trggering events and at keast annually, the Groups test whether the goodwill bas suffered any
mpaiment. Recoverable amount of the CGU, to which the gooowill has been allecated, was determined based on
vilue-in-une cakoulations, These caloulations use pre-tax cash flow projections based on financil budgets aggroved
by management oovering a 16-year period (2022 16-year pericd). Prosections for a period of greater than five
yoars hive bean wied on the basss that a langer prodection period repretents the long-dved nature of generation,
transmission and distribution assets and a more approprate reflection of future cash flows of HK Electric under the
regulatony regime. The cash flow projectsons are discounted wsing a pre-tax discount rate of 7.08% (2022: 6.79%).
The discount rate used refiacts specific rsks relating to the relevant CGU. Cash fiows bayond the 16-year periad are
extrapolated using the terminal growath rate of 1,0% (2022 1.0%1

Thishi wwas i indlicalion of irmgalrerant arsend rom revew on goochalll as 5 30 Moveimds 2023
If the drscount rate rose 1o 7.17% (2022 7.09%), the recoverable armownt of the CGL would be approcmately

equal {o its carrying amount. Except this, ary reasonably possible changes in the other key assumplions used n the
valug-in-use calcutation would not affect management’s view on impairment test result as at 30 Movember 2023,
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18. Investments in subsidiaries

Details of the subsidiaries at 31 December 2023 are a5 fallows:

bsued share Percentage of Place of
capital and equity held by Incorporation/
Hame of subsidiary debt securities the Company operation Principal activity
Century Rank Limited s 100%  Bntish Virgin klands!  Imestrrent holding
Hong Kong
Treasure Business Limited st 100% % British Virgin klands' Inrvestment holding
Hong Kong
Thie Hangkasng Elsctric §2,411,600,000 100% 1! Haong Kong  Elecincity ganefatisn
Company, Limited and supply
Honghong Electric st 100% ' Brtish Virgin klands! Financing
Finance Limited HKSE, 704 million Hong Kong
Hong Kong dollar
fined raie notes
LS5 1,750 milion
United States dollar
fied rale notes
HES 1,056 million
Hong Kong dollar
TEro COupOn noles
LIS5400 million
Urited Staies dollar
callable 2er
COLPON NotEs
[see note 25)

11 Indirectly bl

HE Electric nvwestmants
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19. Interest in a joint venture

Dietails al the Groups intersst ina joint venture, wich is accounted Tor using the edquety maethod in the corohdated
financial statemants, are as Tolliows:

Issued Groups' Place of

share effective  incorporation/
Hame of joint venture capital interest operation Principal activity
Hong Kong LNG Terminal Limited 110 0% Hong Kong Develop, construct, operate,
["HELTL"} maintain and own a bgueefied
nalural gas {LNG) terminal
In Hong Kong and provaling

related sensices

HELTL & pesntly owried by HE Electng and Castle Peak: Poweer Compary Limited (“CAPCO”) lor the development of an
LNG serminal in Hong Kong. HELTL is a joint venture of HE Electic and CAPCO as its agnificant operational and financial
decrions Mguing wanimoos consent of both charshoiders

HEKLTL, the only jeint ventue i which the Groups panicisate. i an unlsted carporate entity whose quoted markat price is
not available,

Surnmarised linancial information below represents amounts shown n HELTL's financlal staterments prepared in
sccordance with HKFRSs and the Groups' shate of results and nel atsets

2023 Flirss
£ million 5 milion
Current assets
Bank coposits and cash 11 5
Citbar currant assats 114 "
125 36
Hon-curment assels 44973 2777
Current kabilities
Loars from shaneholders (86} (33)
Financial Kabilities {112) -
Trade and ather payables 1223) (1711
421} (209
Hom-curment habilities
Loans fram shareholders (2,895) (3, 604)
Mon-current financial Babilities {1,781} -
{4,677} l?.l_iﬂd'l
Met assets - -
Revenus 527 ]
Fraofit for the year - -
Other comprehensive Income - -
Total comprehensive income - -
Incheted n abowve profit:
Deprecation and anmod tsatin 123 -
Firance costs 124 =
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19. Interest in a joint venture (continued)

023 2022

5 million § milhon

Groups' shate of net assats - -
Lean 1o joint venture e note bolow) 895 793
8495 793

HK Electrc entered into a Sharehclder Loan Facility Agresment (*5LFA") m 2019 with HELTL under which two tranches
af loan faclities 1o2alling 36599 million are provided by HE Electric 10 finance HELTL's obtaiming the ‘and kease and
construction of the jetty for the LNG termmal. Both tranches of loans are unsecured and interest-baanng wath the rates
benchrmarked with market rates. HE Electric and HELTL further entered into two Amendmont Agreements to the SLEA
respectively in 2022 and 2023 to increase the two tranches of loan facilities to $978 millon,

20, Inventories

2023 2022

S million 5 million

Coal, fuel oil and natural gas 692 1,158
Stores and materials (see note below) n 283
1,003 1,446

Included in stores and materials i5 capital stock of $138 million (2022: $137 millon) which was purchased for future
malntenance of capital assats

21, Trade and other receivables

2023 2022

S million % million

Trade dabiors. net of loss allmwance (see potes (a) and (h) below) T4 a1l
Other recevablis (see note belaw) 651 729
1,275 1,540

Derivative financial Instrurments (see note 26) 1 1
Crepodls and prepayrments 93 90
1,469 1,631

All of the trade and other receivables are expectad to be recovered within one year

Other recevables of the Groups include unbilled electricity charges of $489 million {2022 4579 million) 1o be receled
Froim ehectrcity customers.

HE Electric wastments 5 neal Hegooer J00
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(a) Ageing analysis of trade debtors

The ageing anakysis of trade debrtors basad on imoice date, which are nefther individually mor collectively considered
1o be impaired, i as follows:

2023 2002

5 millian % milion

Current and within 1 month 664 148
1 1o 3 monihs 48 56
Kore than 3 months but lags tham 12 months 12 7
724 B

Electrcity bills issued 1o residential, small ndustriad, commercial and mescellaneous austomers for electnaty supplass
are due upon presentation wheneas masmum demand customers are allowed a cedit period of 16 werking days. if
settigments by magmum demand customers are recelved after the credit period, a surcharge of 5% can be added 1o
the electncty bills.

(b} Expected credit losses of trade debtors

Thi Growps measure boss aliowances for trade debtors at an amount equal to ifetime ECLs, which is calcudated using
& provision matrx, The Groups cetermine the provisson for ECLS by groupeng together trade debtors with smilar
credit risk characterstics and collectely assessang them for likelihood of recovery, taking mto account presailing
economic environment. For trade deblors relating 1o accounis which are long overdis with sgnificant amounts or
known insobendes or non-response to collection activities, they are assessed individually lor impairment allowance.

Thee Groups classity trade delbtors by nature of customer accownts namely [ve accounts and fina! accounts. The
foliovang table provides information about the Groups' exposune 1o eredit risk and ECLs for trade deion:

2023
Gross carrying Lifetime et carrying
ECL rate Amunt ECLs amount
% & million £ million § millian
Live accounts
Provision on colleclive banis F 91 [13) 678
Fimal accounts
Frowsion on indrvidual basis 17 21 () 7
Other trade debtors
Provision on collective basis o 29 - 29
741 {17 J24
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21. Trade and other receivables (continued)

{b) Expected credit losses of trade debtors (continued)

2022
Gross carmying Litatime Kel camying
ECL rae AMmount ECLs amount
% § million § milion § million
Live acconsnts
Prendsion on collective basis 2 TED (12} 7T
Final acconnts.
Prowisaon on indaidual basis 14 12 (21 10
Other trade debtors
Prenvision an collective basis o 24 - 24
235 (14} !_1_1__

H¥ Electric obtained colatesal kn the form of secunity deposits or bank guasantees from customers (see note 3 1{a}).

Mowernent in the loss allowance account i respect of trade debtors dunng the year iz as follows:

2023 2022

5 million 3 million

A1 1 January 14 12
Impairment losses recogrised during the year 5 3
Ammcints written off during the year 2) 1)
At 31 December 17 14

22. Fuel Clause Recovery Account
HE Blectrc adjusts Fuel Clause Change per unit for ehecincity sakes on a rmonthiy basis 1o reflect acival cost of fuets ina
timely manner. Special Fuel Rebate of 1.1 cents per undt of electricity was offered 1o all our custemens n May 2023 sn as to
freere the Fusl Clause Change payable in May 2023 at Apal 2023 level [2022: Nil),

Micverriens et Fuel Clavse Recovery Account were & lolkows

2023 20122

S million 4§ million

At 1 lanuary 1,892 252
Tramfeared 1o prafit o low 5401 6,922
Fuel Clause Charges during the year (7,356} (5,2482)
Spacial Fuel Rebates during the you 10 =
AT 3 Decermber {53) I.892

This account, inclusie of interest, has been and will continue to be used to stabilise electricity tariffs.

HE Electric wastmants Sinical Hegoer J023
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23, Bank deposits and cash and other cash flow information

(a) Bank deposits and cash comprise:

2023 2022
S millkan § milicn
Dapaiits veth Banks snd othor linanckal institutions with
3 months or ess 1o maturity when placed - L)
Cash a1 bank and in hand 21 FE]
Bank overdrafts — unsecued (44} -
Cash and cash egualents in the consolidated cash Bow statement {23} 125
Bank cverdralts - unsecured 44
Bank depesits and cash in the consolidated siatement of
financial position 21 35

(b} Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash generated from operations:

2023 2022
hate 5 million § millicn
Profit before 1acation 3,616 3,548
Adpsarments for;
Iniesest income 7 (44} (30
Finance costs L) 1,360 961
Interest expense ransferred to fuel costs g 35 33
Depreciation 10 2,905 2,924
Amoritsaticn of keasehold [and 10 196 166
MNet loss oh dispoial and written off of property,
plant and equipmsent 10 156 i1
Increqse in provissons for et decommissioning obligation  28(a) 76 120
Mel financial mstrument revabeation and exchangs
{gamnaVioises 2} S
Changes in working capital:
Decreasafincrease) i imentornes 444 {549
Decreaseincrease) in trade and other recevables 158 {372)
Movemants in Fuel Clause Recovery Accountl 1,945 {1,640)
(Decreaselincrease in trade and other payables and
contract kabilities {1,280) 9B
Increasefdecrease m net employes retirement benefit
anetfabilities (18) 10
Payrmeni for asset decommissioning oobgation expendilure  28ia) (124) 5)
Special rebates 13ich - (99
Smart Power Care Fund cisbursemant 136c) {63} (18]
Cash generated from operations 9, 460 6,157
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23. Bank deposits and cash and other cash flow information {continued)

{c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities:
The table below detadls changes in the Groups" labslities from financng activities, inchuding both cash and non-cash
changes, Liatwities arising from financing activities are liabilites for which cash flows were, or futune cash flows will
e, classified in the Groups' consoddated cash flow statement as cash flows from financing actanties.

Dorivative  Detivative

finapcial  financial
Instrument  instrument
held 16 hald 1o
hedge hadge

Medium  Customers' Lease borrowings borrowings
Bankloans termnotes  deposits fabilities {assats)  (llabilities) Tetal

§ million [roce 25)  ireie 25) [note 287BH
A11 January 2003 1397 it 2381 1 [1.228) 17 51432
Changes from financing cash flows:
Proceeds fom bank loars 2,500 - - - - - 1500
Repayment of bank loans 3am - - - - - (341
Reder=pton of medum term noses - (200} - - - - {300)
Payrment of lease habines - - - ) - - {1
hew customery’ depos - - m - - - m
Repayment of cusiomens depoiits - - [243) - - - (243)
Tota changes fmm finanting

cash flows famm (300} &8 L - - 1210
Changes in falr value - - - - 586 i) 600
Orther changes
Incaana i lease lakaitiey - - - 3 - - 3
Iiesest on bomowings and other

finance costs 7 m - - . - bril
4131 Devember 2023 nmr 7,148 1448 L] (o3} L 52,08

HE Electric nvwestmants
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firsancial fimancial
instrumend  rrsrumient
held 82 heedd 1oy
Fedge hedge
Medum  Customens’ lease bomowings  bomovargs
Bank loams  teem nates depoiits  Habibtes famsets]  (labilitiesh Tatal
§ million {note 350 inate 25) [reds 23R
At 1 January J32 15,612 mma 2317 1 1389) 187 43142
Changes from financing cash flows:
Procerds from bank loam 4573 - - - - - 4873
Repayment of baric loars (5009 - - - - - (5000
Faymeent oif lease labdities - - - )] - - i
New outomen depotis - - ElL ) - - - 05
Roparrrasnt ol Eustermers depersts - - (242 - - - (242
Tatal changes frem francing
tanh o 4173 - ] n - = 4436
Changes in falr valss - - - - o) 60} (B
Other changes:
Incresse iy edse Banitey - - - 1 - - 1
Interest on bomowangs 2nd other
fnare sty i m - - - - 213
At 31 December 2082 13987 27115 1,381 1 {1.289) L AR
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24, Trade and other payables and contract liabilities

2023 2022
S million 5 million

Trade and other payahles
Creditors measured at amortised coal (see nate (o) below] 333 4,718
Lease liabiktes (see nota 287h)) 2 -
Derhative financiad insturmems (see note 26) 1 40
3,384 4,758
Contract liabilities (zee note b below) 33 B3
3417 4,821

All of the trade and other payables are expected 10 be settled within one year of ane repayable on gerrand

{a) Creditors” ageing is analysed as follows:

2023 2022

5 million 5 million

Due within 1 month or an demard 1,353 2,748
Due altier 1 month but wethin 3 months a01 818
Due after 3 meonths but within 12 months 1127 I.152
238 4,718

{b] Contract liabilities

{l}  The contract kabilities relate to the advance conssderation recebved from customers for electricity-refated
sorvices, which coraists mainky of (1) permanent supply senvice, primarily associated with the suoply of
efeciricity 1o customer substataons for lange nevr developments and to-small new developments without
customer substation provisans, and (1) site service primarily associated with the temporany supply of
electricity to construction sites or special functions, for which revente s recognised upon completion of the
electncity-related sernces

fiiy  Mosements in contract labdiies during the year is as falows:

2023 2022

5 million § million

At 1 January 63 78
Increase in contract habities as a result of bilng in advance for

performance of electrcity-related services 5 43
Decreass in contract habilties w a rosull of recognisng rmvanue
during the year that was included in the contract liabilities at

the beginning of the year {36} B3]

At 31 December 33 53

HE Electric vwastments Sneal Hegoaer J00
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25. Bank loans and other interest-bearing borrowings

2023 1022
5 million  milicn
Bank loans 2307 23,987
CLaTen] portion (415} (257)
2,602 23,730
Heong Kong dollar medium 1eam nates
Fized rate notes (see mote (a) below) B,661 B, 956
Tero ooupon notes (see note (b below) 434 806
9,495 9,76l
Current portion _B_M} : 131_:0;!
9,195 0,462
United S1ates dollar medium term notes
Fixed rate nates (see nate (o) below) 13,581 13,565
Tero coupon notes {see note (b} below] 4,069 3858
17,650 17,463
HNon-Curment portion A49.447 50,655

fa)  The Hong Kong dollar fixed rate notes bear intefest at rates rangng from 2.4% to 4% per annum (2022: 2.4% 1o
4% per anmum),

The United States dolar fued rate notes bear interest at rates rangaig from 1.875% 1o 2.875% per annurn (2022:
LE7S% 1o 2.B75% pef annum)

B)  The Hong Kong dollar perc coupon notes which wisie Bsued at dacount have nominal amount of 1,056 million
{2022: 51,056 milioent and accrual yiedd of 3.5% per annum (202.2; 3,5% per annumi.

Thie United Staies dollar zero coupon notes have nominal amount of US5400 million (2022: USS400 maon) and
acerual yield of 4.375% per annum (2022 4.375% per annum). These notes embed with sswer call apticns allowing
issuer to early redeem the notes and are caflable on 1.2 October 2022 and annually therealier until the penultimate
yoar o maturity.

fe}  Deteds of thee ksuver of he Horg Kong dollar and United Siates dollar medssm lerm notes are sel ol in nole 18,

(d) Some banking faciises of the Groups ane subject 1o the fulflment of covenants relatng to certan of e Groups’
staternent of financial position ratios, as are commondy found n lending amangements with finandial institutions. 1
the Groups wene to breach the covenants, the drawn down facilities would become payable on demand and amy
undrawn amount will be cancelled. The Groups regudarly monitors its complance with these covenants. Further
aetaats of the Grougs' managerment of liguidity rak ane set out in note 21(b), As at 31 December 2023 and 2022,
mane of the covenants relating 1o drews down facilities had been breached.
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25. Bank loans and other interest-bearing borrowings (continued)

(o} Mone of the non-current intenest-Beanng borrowings is expacted to be settled within ane voar. All the above
[oamovenags are unsecuned,

The non-curment interest-beanng borrowings are repayable as fellows:

2023 2022
5 millien § millian
Adter 1 year but wilhin 2 years 300 1,300
After 2 vears but within 5 years 29974 208,351
After 5 years 19,173 20,004
49,447 50,655
26, Derivative financial instruments
2023 2022
Assets Liahilities Assets Liabilithes
§ million 5 million § rlicn § million
Derivative finandal instruments used for
hedging:
Cash flow hadges:
~ Croms CUMEney Swaps - {92} - {41)
~ Intatest fate Swaps &02 (26} 972 {85}
= Forward forelgn exchange contracts 136 {1] 473 (3
Fair value hedges
- Fonward feeelgn exchange contracts - - - {18
738 (182} 1,451 (151}
Analysed as:
Cumment 1 {1} 1 43
Mon-cusrent 737 (181) 1,450 {111]
EE: {182} 1,451 {151)

HE Electric wastments S ooeal Heg
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27. Employee retirement benefits
The Groups affer thres metingment schamaes which 1ogether cover all pormanent staff,

Cne of the schemes (Lhe “Pendion Scheme”] provides pervsion benedits based on the employee's final basic salary and
length of sendce. This scheme s acoountad for as a defined benefit retirement scheme.

Another scheme i defined contribution in natue ithe "Defmed Contribution Schame® § and offers its membens various
Irnsestment funds in which they can invest. One of the mvestment funds provides a guaranteed ratumm and i thus defired
benefit i nature; the part of the Defined Contribution Scheme in respect of this imestment fund is accounted for as

a defmned benefit retirement scheme (" Defined Contribution Scheme ~ DB Portion ™). In respect of siher investmient
funds which do not offer a guarentesd retum. the scheme Is accountad lor as a defined contribution retirement schame
(" Dafired Contribution Schime = DC Portion™) (s note 2 7B

Both the Penslon Scheme and the Defined Coninbution Scheme are established under trust and are regisiered under the
Hong Kong Occupatianal Retirement Schames Ordinance. The assets of the schermnes are held independemly of the Groups'
amsats in separate Wusted admenistored funds, Tha responsibility for the govermance of the schemes ~ including investmant
and confribution decisions - lies with the independent tstees in accordance with the trust deeds of the schemes.

Singe the mtroduction of the Mandatory Prowdent Fund Systern in Hong Eong i December 2000, bath the Penscn
Scherme and the Defined Contribubion Scheme have been closed 1o new enirants and all new recrubts are enrolied in 3
master tust Mandatory Provident Fund Schema ithe *MPF Schema®) operated by an independent service provider undsr
the Hong Kong kandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ondnance, The MPF Scheme s a defined contribution retirement
schame wih the employer and Its employees each coninbarting fo the scheme in accordance wath the relevant scheme
fuibes. The MPF Scheme rules provide for valuntarny contribiutions to be made by the employer caleidated as a percentage of
the employees’ basc salanes.

(a) Defined benefit retirement schemes (“the Schemes”)

The funding policy in respact of the Pension Scheme b based on valuations prepared perodically by independent
protessionally quakisod actuanses at Willis Towors Watton Hong Kong Limited, The policy for amplopner’s coninsations
& to fund the scheme in accordance with the achuary’s eecomenendations on an on-goéng basis, The principal
actuanal assumptions used Include discount rate, long-tenm salary ncrease rale and future penson increase

rate which are disciosed in note 27{akviil together with appropriate provisions for mortality rates, wsnover snd
adjustments 1o refiect the short-term marcet expectation of saliry increaces. Tha most recent actuanal valuation

of the Pension Schermea was camied out by the appointed actuary, reresented by bMs. Weng Lui, FSA, as at

1 Jaiweary 202 1. The valuation revealed that the assets of the Pension Schigime weie sulliclen to cover (e aggregate
vasted Babilities as a1 the valuation date.

Baoth defined benefit retirement schemes axpose the Groups 1o vestment risk, interest rate risk and salary risk whila
the. Peresion Scheme also exposes the Groups to nisks of lngevity and inflation,

The retirement scheme expensedncome recognised In prafit or loss for the year énded 31 Decernber 2023 was
determined in accordance with HKAS 19 (2011), Empioyee benefits.
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of the Trust and of the Company

(Expressed in Horg Kong dollams unless otherase indicated)

27. Employee retirement benefits (continued)

{a) Defined benefit retirement schemes (“the Schemes”) (continued)

(il The amounts recognised n the consobdated statement of financial positeen ame as follows:

2023 2022

§ milllon $ million

Fair value of assets of the Schormes 3,085 3,065
Precsent value of defined benefit obligations (2,208) (2,341}
77 724

Represented by:

Employee retrement benefit scheme assets 968 Baz
Employee retirement benefit scheme labilities {191) (158)
77 724

A portion of the above asetiiability s expecied 1o be realisedsetited after meve than one year, Howeer,
it & ot practicable fo segregate this amount from the amounts payable in the next 12 months, &5 fulue

contributions will also relate fo future senices rendered and future changes in acluarial assumptions and
markat conditians.

{iiy  Movements i fair value of plan assets of the Schemes are as follows

2023 2022

5 million $ miilion

At 1 lanuary 3,085 1816
Interest income on the Schemes” assals 109 51

Return on Schemes’ assets, excluding Imerest income 130 1533)
Employer contributions paid to the Schemes 32 35
Employes coninbutions paid o the Schames 9 1

Benafits pad {260} 315)
At 31 Decembser 3,085 3,065

The Groups expect 1o contribute 335 milllon to the Schermes in 2034,

HE Electric nvwestmants
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{i)  Meovements in the present value of defined benefit obligations of the Schermes ane a3 follows:

2023 2022
5 millien 5 milicn
At 1 January 2341 3121
Current srvice cost kL] a2
Interast cosl 85 44
Employes contrbubans paid to the Schemes 49 1
Actuanal lossesAgains! due foc
~ liakshty exper e 2 [23)
= changs in financial assumphions 93 {552]
= change in demographic assumptions - 3
Benefits paid (260} {315
At 31 Decembser 2,308 2,341

W) The expenses recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, prior (o any capitalsation of
employmient costs attributable to additions of property, plant and equipment, is as follows:

2023 2022

S millian % milken

Current sgrvice cost L] 52
Met interest ncome on net defined beneli assebiiabiliey (24) 7
14 45

{v)  The espenses are recognised in the Tollowing ling tz2ms in the consolidated staterment of prodit o loss

2023 2022

£ million 5 milicn

Direct costs B Ell
Other operating costs 6 14
14 45

258/340



EDINETOOOO
Oo0O0000000000000000o000000O0ondn(E30309)
Oooooooooooobooooooad

Financial Staternents
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27. Employee retirement benefits (continued)

{a) Defined benefit retirement schemes (“the Schemes”) (continued)

vl The cumulatiee amount of actusral gains recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income &

a5 Tobowvs:
2023 2022
§ million § milliocn
At 1 Lanwany 725 636
Rermeasurement of net defined benefit assethability recognsed
in the consadidated staternent of comprehensie income
during the year EL 39
At 31 December Ta0 725
iwil)  The major categories of assets of the Schemes are as follows:
2023 2022
£ millian % million
Hong Kong equities 20 259
European equities 155 156
Narth American equities 517 460
Asia Pacific and other equities 143 132
Global bonds 2,005 2,00
Deposits, cash and others 45 g7
3,085 3,065

Strategac invesiment declsions ane taken with respect 1o the riss and retum profiles

il The prinoepal aciuanal assurrpiions used a5 at 31 Decemiber are a5 Tollows:

2023 2022
Discount rate
= The Pension Scheme 3.5% &.0%
= The Defined Contribution Schame — DE portion 2.9% 3 4%
Leng-term salary increase rale 5.0% 5.0%
Future pension increase rate 25% 2.5%

HE Electric nvwestmants
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{ix)  Sensitnity anakss

(1) The Pension Scheme

Inerease/{decrease] in
defined benefit obligations
2023 2022
S millban % milicn
Actuarial assumptions
Discount rate
- increase by 0.25% (35} (34
~—decraase by 0 25% ar E
Porsion monesss it
= increase by 0.25% 6 e
- decrease by 0.25% (35) [33)
crtality rate applied to secific age
— set forward one year (50} (45
=56 bastlowrard oo year 50 45
{2} The Defined Contribution Scheme — [ Portion
Increase/{decrease) in
defined benefit cbligations
2023 202
S millian % millen
Actuarial assumptions
Discount rate
- increase by 0,25% (12} (13)
- decrease by 0.25% 12 14
Interest to be credited
= increase by 0.25% 12 14

Thie above sensitiity analyses are hased on a change in an assumplion while holding all other assumphons
constant. In practice, changes in some of the assumptions may be comelated, When cakculating the sensithaty
of the defined benefil obligation to significant actuarlal assumgptions, the same method (present value of the
diafined benelit civigation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reponting period)
has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit liability recognised within the consofidated statement
of financial pasition. The analysis has been performed an the same basis as for 2022,
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27. Employee retirement benefits (continued)

{a) Defined benefit retirement schemes (“the Schemes”) (continued)

b The falkwing table sots ot the weighted average durations of the defined benefit obligations of the Schemes:

2023 2022
The Pension Scheme 10.8 Years 108 Years
Thie Defined Contribution Scheme - DB Borton 5.1 Years 5.3 Years
(b) Defined contribution retirement schemes
2023 2022
% million § million
Expenses recognised in profit or koss 77 T

Forfeited contributions of 12,046,000 20221 11,492 000) have been received during the year and no contrbutions
{by employers on behall of employes who leave the schemes prior to vesting fully in such contribrutions) wers ussd
o offset existing contributions.

28. Other non-current liabilities

2023 2022

5 million 5 millicn

Provisions (see note {a) below) 1281 1.429
Lease labiltes (see note (b) below) 1 1
1382 1,430

{a) Provisions

2023

5 million

Pravisions for asset decommissioning abligation

Ac 1 Jaruary 1429
Additional provisions made 76
Provisions utllised {124}

A1 31 Decernber 1.381

Under Sol A, provicon which represenis the best estimation of sspenditure requered 1o wettle asset decommissioning
ablgation has 1o ba made to the extent that Hi Electric incurs an obligaton for the costs of dismantiing and
remoying property, plant and equipment and restonng the stes on which they ane lacated enher when the assets ane
acquired or as a consequence of having used them during a particular pesiod for eleciricity-related activities.

HE Electric nvwestmants
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(b} Lease liabilities

The folieadng table shows the remaining contractual maturities of the Growns® lease Babilities at the end of the
curment and previous FRparTng penods:

frlirks 2032
Presant value Present value
of the minimum  Total mindmum  of the minimun Totel mnenum
lease payments  lease payments lagse payments lease payments

5 million 5 million 5 million § milicn

Within 1 year 2 F - -
After 1 year but wathin 2 years 1 1 1 1
3 3 1 1

Less: total future interest expenses - -
Present value of lease llabilities 3 1

29. Income tax in the consolidated statement of financial position

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of financial position

2023 2022
S millian % milicn
Hong Keng Profits Tax

Provesion for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the yiar 909 187
Balance of Profits Tax provision relating to prcs year (20} E:]

889 149

(b} Deferred tax liabilities

2023 2022

5 million % millicn

Deferred tax habilities 10,124 10,4945
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29, Income tax in the consolidated statement of financial position (continued)

(b} Deferred tax liabilities ([continued)

il The components of deferred tax liabdibestassets) recognised (n the consolidated statement of finandal position
and the maovensents during the year are as follows:

Depreciation
allowances Dafined
inexcess of  Fuel Clause benefit
the related Racovery  retirement

% millian dapreciation Aceaunt sehiemed Others Total
AR January 2022 9851 47 65 14 0.8a3
Chargedforedied) 1o profit of ko 176 10 (2} P 442
Charged 1o other comprihensve

incame - - 7 63 fu ]
Charged directly in equity - - - 1 1
At 31 December 2022 and

1 Jamsary 2023 10,037 ERF 0 T8 10455
Changedf oredited) 10 prodit or los: 52 (321) i 3 {263)
Chargedforedited) 10 cther

comprehensin income - - ] {115} (109}
Charged directly in equity - - - 1 1
At 31 December 2023 10,089 18] ] (35) 10,124

{iy  The Groups had no materal unpeovided defamed tax assets or Babilities as at 31 December 2023 and 2022

HE Electric nvwestmants
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30. Capital, reserves and dividends

(a) Movements in components of equity

The recancliation betwesan the opaning and cloding balances of each componant of the Groups’ consoldated equity
& set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Datads of the changes in the Company’s individual
components of equity between the beginning and the end of the year ane set out below:

The Company
Proposed'
Share Shane Hedging Revenuz dedared
capital pramium ] g divicdend Total
§ million (rode 3000 (note 300 {nole 3NMEN  [node I00cy) (rde 14)
Balance & 1 fanuary 2022 8 ATAT2 1] EE ) 14012 52004
Changes in equity for 2002
Profit foe the yaar - - : - 1387 - 137
Othet Compeetensie income - . 450 - 5 450
Total coemgresensie income 480 3357 3547
Sevcond interm diidend in respeci ol
eicnss year apgeoved ard paid
{1} = = 0 = A [LEFFE
First interim divedend paid lsee pote 145 - - - 1 A08 = {1 40
Proposed second intenm didend
(52 nole 14000 - - - (14221 1422 -
Balance at 31 Decesnber 2022 and
1 hanuary 2023 ] 4n 65 1864 141 LT RE]!
Changes in equity for 2023
Frafit fce the year - - - s - 70
(Other iompeshenshe income - - [135) - - (135
Tatal coemgrahenshe income - - (138 3Lms - 1570
Second infenm dandend in respect ol
peviows pear appeoved ard paid
{see note 14icl) - — = - [1.422) (1422
Firg; interim diidend paid (see norde 140 - - - {1,408 - {1,408
Propased sacond intenim davedend
{see note 1400 - - - 422 1422 =
Balsnce at 31 Decenber 2023 B 47472 FL] 4718 1422 AN

All of the Company's share premium and revenue resenve & avasable for dstribution. The Company Board declared
tha payrrent of @ wcond interim dividend of 16.09 cents (2022: 16,09 cents} por ordbnary shang, amounting 1o
$1,422 million {2022; 51,422 milon), in beu of a final dividerd and therefore no final dividend was proposed by the
Compary Board,
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30. Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

{b) Share capital

The Company
2023
Humber af Sharas Hominal value
5
Autherised:
Ordinary shares of 50,0005 sach
A1 1 fanuary and 31 Decermber 20,000,000,000 10,000,000
Preference shares of $0.0005 each
A Y Jamvuary and 31 Degermber 20,000,600,000 10,000,000
ksued and fully paid:
Ordinary sharas of $0.0005 aach
ALY Januncy and 31 Decerber B,836,200,000 4,418,100
Prefarence shares of $0.0005 sach
Az 1 lanuary and 31 Decernber £,836,200,000 4,418,100
2022
MNurmiber of Shares Naminal valus
]
Buithorised
Oresnary shares of $0.0005 sach
A1 1 lanuary and 31 December 20,000,0600,000 10,000,000
Preference shares of $0,0005 each
A Y Jamvuary and 31 Degernber 20,000,000,000 10,000,000
Issued and fully paid
Orginary shares of $0.0005 sach
A1 Januncy and 31 Decervber B,B36,200,000 4418, 100
Proforence shares of $0.0005 each
Az 1 lanuary and 31 Decernber B,836,200,000 4,418,100

HE Electric nvwestmants
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(<) Share premium

Share premeum represents the excess of Share Stapled Unit issuing price over the nominal values of ordinary and
preference shares, after deducting undenwriting commasscns and Sling expenses puruant 1o ghobal offering that
have been charged to equity. The application of shane premdaum ks governed by Section 34 of Cayman Companies
Law and the prostsions of Company's amended and restated Memorandum and Articles of Assooation

{d} MNature and purpose of reserves
(i} Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve includes cash fiow hedge reserne and cost of hedging resene. The cash fiow hadge
resanve comprises The effective portion of the cumidative net change in the fair value of hedgng mstruments
used in cash flowy hedges (nit of any deferred tax effect) pending subsequent recognition of the hedged cash
flowy in accordance with the accounting policy adoptad for cash Bow hedges in rate Hgii). Under HKFRS 9,
Financial Instruments, if the Groups exclude the forsard element of fonsand confracts and the foreign
currency bass spread of financial instruments (the “excluded alements®) from the designation of the hedging
instruments, then the excluded elements may be separately accounted for a3 cost of hedgng, The fair value
changes of the excluded slements are recognised in a separate component of equity &% cost of hedging resens
to the extent that it relates 1o the hedged items,
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30. Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

{d) Mature and purpose of reserves (continued)

{I} Hedging reserve (continued)

Oooooooooooobooooooad

The falowang tabses provide a reconcikation of the companents in hedging reserve and an analyss of other
comprehensive income by risk categorny that anses from hedge accounting:

m

HE Electric nvwestmants

Cash flow hedge reserve
Intarest Currancy
5 milkon rate risk risk Total
Balance at 1 lanuary 2022 {183) [Pl a7
[Effective portion of changes in fair value of hedging
imstruments recagnised in other comprehensive income 1012 7 1.019
Reclasstication adjustiments for amounts transferred 1o
profit or loss isee note 1 below) 23 - 23
et daferred tax charged to other comprehensive ncome {95} (1} (98]
a4n & 946
Amounts transfermed 10 the initial camying amount of
hedged items, net of tax (see note 2 below) - E 3
Balance at 31 December 2022 and
1 January 2023 isee note 3 baelow) 757 609 1,366
Effective portion of changes n fair value of hedging
instruments recognised in ather comprehensive income q2s) " o7
Reclassidication adjusiments for amounts translered 1o
profit o Inss (see noke 1 balmw) (263) - (268)
Nat defermed tas creditedicharged) to ather
comprehensive incoms 43 13} 40
(351) 15 {338)
Amounts transferred 1o the inltal carying amount of
hedged items, net of 1ax (see note 2 belomw) - 3 3
Balance at 31 December 2023 (see note 3 balow) 406 627 1.033
HNote 1 Amounts redassified 1o peofit or loss ane necognised in the * Firance costs® lne item in the consalciated

statement ol profit or loes

Mote 2 Amounts transfomed to the initial camying amount of hedged o ane recogrised in the "Fropey,
plant and equipment” or “Inventodies” ire ilems in the consolidated statemsnt of fnancial posiion.

Note 3 The enkire balance relates to confinung hisdges.
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{2} Costof hedging reserve

Foreign
EUrTency Forward
§ million basis spread elemant Total
Balance at | Jaruary 2022 (25) [EE {413]
Hedging for time-pened related hedoed items
Effective portion of changes in fair value of

hedging instruments recognised in other

cormgrehensive incaome 2o 4 {134]
— Rexlassification adustments for amousils

Transiemed & prodit of loss (e note 1 below) - {63} (531

Hiodging fes transacton it hedgod i
- Effectve portion of changas in fair value of

hedging Instruments recognised in other

comprehensive income - 12} 2)
— Amounits transferred to the indtial carmying ameount

of hedged items {see note 2 below) - 1 1

Wet deferrad tax credited to other comprehensiva

INCEFTE a a0 33
Balance at 31 December 2022 and
1 January 2023 {see note 3 below] {42y {5386) 1538)

Hedging for time-perod related hedged items
- Effectve portion of changes in fair value of
hedging instruments recognised in other

comprehensive incorms i3 {428} {395)
= Reclassification adaustments for amounts
transfemed to profit of loss (see note 1 below) - {63} {63)

Hedging for transaction related hedged items
~ Eifectve portion of changes in Tair value of
hiedging Instruments recognised in other

comprehensive Incams - 5 5
~ Armounts transferred to the intal carrying ameount
of hadged items (10 note 2 below) - 1 1
Met deferred tax {charged Veredited 1o othes
comprehensive income {5) 80 75
Balance at 31 December 2023 (see note 3 below) [14) {941} (455)
Hete 1 Bmeunits reclissified 1o prolis of low ae recognasd in the “Finance costs™ kne dem in the consolidated

staerment of peolit of loss

Nobe 2 Amodnis ransterred to the inital camying amount of hedged nerms are recogried in the “Property,
plant and eguipment™ of "Iventcdles” boe il in the condalidated sttement of linancial positon

Huate 3 The entire balance relates To continuing hedges
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30. Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(d)

{(3]

Mature and purpose of reserves (continued)
{il} Revenue reservi

Th reverise resenne compenes the accurnulated profits retained by the Company and IG subsidianies and
accumulated actuarial gainsfosses on remeasurermneant of net defined benefit assetMability of HK Elactric.

Capital management
The Grougs” primary objectives when managing capital are:

= o safeguand the Groups” ability to contims as a going concern, 50 that the Groups can conlinee 1o provide
returns for holders of Share Stapled Units and benafits for other stakeholders;

- topiode returns to holdars of Shae Stapled Unils by securing access to linance at a reasonabls cost)
- o support the Groups' stability and future growth; and
- loprovide capital for the purpose of strengthening the Groups' risk management capabity,

The Grouss actively and regudarty riniew and manage the capital structure, taking imio corsderation the future
capital reguaremnents of the Groups and capaal efficiency, foracast profitability, forecan aperating cash flews,
forecast capital expenditure and projected investment opporiunities.

The Growss monitor the capital structure on the basis of & net debt-to-rel total capital ratio. For this purpose the
Groups define net debt as interest-beating borrowings (as shown In the consolidated statement of financial position)
fess bank deposits and cash. Met totd capital inchudes net debt and equty which comprises al companents of aguity
(s showun m thie comsoldated statement of financial position)

Duning 2023, the Groups' strategy, which was unchanged from 2022, was to confrol the Groups” level of debt in
oider 15 Scure dcoeis 1o finans at & reasonable cest. In ardar 10 malntain of adjuit the kevel of debt. the Groups
may adjest the amount of dstributions pad to holders of Share Stapled Units in accordance with the Trust Deed,
msue rew Shace Stapled Uinats, raise new debt financing or sell assets o reduce debi.

HE Electric Bwastments Sneal Hegooer J023
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The net dett-to-net total capliad ratio at 31 December 2023 and 2022 was a3 follows:

023 1032

& million 5 million

Bank loans and other interest-bearing barrowings 50,162 51212
Bank overdrafts = unsecured 44 i
Less: Bank deposiis and cash {21} 325)
Met debt 50,185 50,887
Tatal equity 48,978 49,333
Net debt 50,185 50,887
Met total capital 99,163 100,220
MNel debt-to-nel total capital ratio 51% 51%

31. Financial risk management and fair values of finandal instruments

The Groups ae exposed 1o credit, bauidily, mtorest rate and currendy rses in the normal course ef its busingss, In
accordance with the Groups' treasury policy, dervataee financiall instruments are only used to hedge its exposure to foreign
exchange and interest rate risks arising from operational, financing and Fwestment activities. The Groups do not hold or
issue dervative financial instrumants for trading or soeculdtive purpotes.

{a) Credit risk

Thi Growups” credit risk: ks prmandy atinbutable to trade and ather receivabes relating to electricity customers, bank
deposiis and over-the-counter derfvative financlal Instruments entered info for hedging purpeses. The Groups have a
credit policy in place and the exposures 1o these credil risks ane monitored on an ongoing basis,

In respect of trade and other receivables relating to electricity customers, HK Electric obtains collateral in the form

ol security deposits or bank guaraniees from oustomers in accordance welh thie Supoly Rules. The codatieral coversd
$451 malkson of trade and other receivablas at 31 December 2023 (2022: $508 million), The credit policy s set out i
mabo 21,

The Grovps have defined minimum credis rating requirements and tansaction smits for counterpansss when dealing
in financial deraratrves of placing deposis o manimise credit éxposuie, The Groups do not expact any counlerparty o
faill ta meet it abligatiens.

The Grougss have no significant concentrations of credit rsk in respect of trads and other receivables relating 1o
electncity customens, & the fve Largest customers cormbined did not éxceed 30% of the Groups’ lotal revenus.

The magimum expasure to credit risk & represented by the carpng amount of each financlad asset, Induding
dervative financial instruments, In the consolidated statement of finandial position.
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31. Financial risk management and fair values of financial instruments (continued)

{a) Credit risk (continued)

Further guantitatve declosures in respect of the Groups' expasure to aedit risk arising from trade and other
recervables are st out in note 21,

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

The Geouwps” desivative fransaclons are executed with financial instdutions and governed by either International
Swaps and Dervaines Association Master Agreements (*BDA”) or the general ierms and conditions ol these
financial insttutions, with a conditional right of set off under certain circumstances that would rest in all
outsiandang [ransaclions being terminated and nel settied

A5 these financial Institutions curently have na 2gal enforceabls right to sat off the recognised amounts and the
Groups do not intend to settle on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the fiabilites simultanecusly, all such
financial instruments are recorded on gross baws at the end of the reporting period

The following table presents the recognised financial instruments that are sublect 10 enforceable master neting
arrargements but are not offset at the end of the reporting period.

N2y P
Grass amaunts (oo arounts
af fnancial of frarcisl
Imtruments Iritruments
In the Felsted nthe Relstad
womsclidated finarial (omsolcatod Trancial
ftatement  insumenD FEtement iTumEnRs
of Fnanciad  that are not ol fnarcidl fhat arenct
§ milleny heke pasition offiet  Netamount pesiton ot N amoust
Financlal sssets
Interest nale swaps ELLT] B (4184 a8 & 11 Ty 5
Fomward forsgn eschence confracts. ) 1% =H] 1 T an 4
Tl £ {182) 556 1451 (150) 1,300
Financial Eabslitie
i cumency Savigs el a2 182y - 4 41
irterest e s el * (3] - B 7] -
Forward foregnesctange coniracts 3001 2 B4 - M 4 -
Toal 182 {182} - 151 (1814 -
HE Electric Bwastments Sneal Hegooer J023

271/340



EDINETOOOO
Oo0O0000000000000000o000000O0ondn(E30309)
Oooooooooooobooooooad

(b} Liguidity risk

The Groups operate 3 central cash management system in order to achieve a better control of risk and minimise the
comts of funds The Groups’ policy 15 10 requlary manitor current and expected liquidity requirements and cormplianag
with loan covenants, 1o ensure that the Grougs maintain suficient resenves of cash and adequate committed Enes

ot tunding to meet liquidity requirements in the short and longer term. The Groups had undrawn comamitied bank
facilities of 36,535 milion a1 31 December 2023 {2022; §3,400 milson].

The fallowdrg tabies show the remaining contractual maturities at the end of the reporting parad of the Groups'
mon-derivative financial iabiites and dervative finandal instruments, which are based on contractual undiscounted
cash flows (inthuding interest payments computed useng contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the
end of the reportawy period) and the earliest date the Groups can be regquared 1o pay,

2073
Contractual undiscounted cach eutfioves(inflows|
Morethan  More than

Within  Tyearbuwt 2 years bt Camrying
1 year or kess than ks than  Mare than amgunt at
§ milion on demand 1 years 5 yeans § yeans Total 31 December
Man-derivative financial Kabilities
Bank loans and other boerowdngs and
nerest acTuals L1680 251 e 8578 65873 50,350
Bark everchalts - unsecured “ - - - 4 4
Craditors and soctued chafpes 3058 - - - 3056 3056
5T 1151 prk 5T E55T3 53490
Desivative finarclal Instruments
Het settiod
Intirest rate swaps and related
inkerast acoruals ) (3% (438 {88 11.308) [553)
Gross settled
Croas currency swaps &nd related
izt acorua &%
- piliflaw i 201 180 55 3]
= inflow (a7 187 (17 (55 (E25)
Forward foreign exchange contracs held 25
cah Bow hedging imstrursents: on
- puntflaw 1,553 - 33 13372 18,304
= Iifliitd (1.551] B 3519 (140131 (19,0741
Crher forward foregn eachange contracts -
= cutflowy 144 - . - 2]
- InBov {1449 - - - [144)
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31. Financial risk management and fair values of financial instruments (continued)

(b} Liquidity risk (continued)

022
[mlmdsr_mnm cath cutfhowesTinflows
Wiore than More taan

Wishn Tyeatbut 2 yeasbut Campng
1 yaaror s than e Mo than amount at
§ million o cemand 2 years 5 yoars 5 years Total 31 December
Nen-derheatios inancial Habilithes
Bank laars and other bormweangs and
Interest accruals 4,388 inrs ekl 25,901 68,306 Sidie
Creditars and sterusd charges 4445 - - - 4445 4445
EAM 3075 32851 2591 TLI51 55.8T1
Durtvative financlal instruments
Net settled
Irrigstesst vt Swaps and related
Interest acrmualy {252 (&1 H]] 53] {103 {1358 L]
Gross saftled
Crods cumency seaps and related
Interest accruals 5
=ttt Flird m 345 87 B40
- flow (KT} nan (3400 183) B22h
Forward fansgn schange costracts heid a1
cash flow hedging Tatuments: [4TH)
- ot 176 4 3378 13372 16,330
- inflow (171} El] (3,590} (14,003 [\TE9T
(Orher forwar formgn Exchange confracts: 113
- putflow g - - - 3
~ inflow (FL-1] - = - o8n
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{c) Interest rate risk

The Groups are exposed to interest rate risk on ts interest-beanng assets and liabdiies. Interest rate risk & the risk
that the fair value or futwne cash flows of a fnancial instrement will Thictuate because of changes in markel interest
rates. The Groups® interest rate risk arises primarily from kong-term éxternal borrowings.

(i

Hedges of interest rate risk

The Groups” policy i i0 maintain a balanced combinabon of foed and variable rate borrowings 1o reduce (i
Intarest rate risk exposure. The Groups also use cnoss currency savaps and inferest rate swaps to manage the
expasure in accondance with the Groups” reasury pelicy,

Thie Groups clatsify croas curnency Swaps and intores) rite swaps a5 cash flow or Fair valuo hodges and states
them at fair value in accordance with the policy set cut i note Jig). Foresgn currency basts spread of oross
currency swaps are eacluded from the designation of the hedging instrument and are separately accounted for
&% a oost of hedging, which is recognesed Inoequaty in a cost of hedging resene.

The Groups seek to hedge the benchmark interest rate component anly and apply a hedge ratio of 1:1. The
extstence of an economic relationship between the cross currency swapsinterest rate swaps and the fised and
vanable rale borrowangs is determined by matcking their critical contract teoms, ncluding the reference mterest
raites, tenors, interest repncing dates, maturity dates, imenest payment andfor recespt dates, the notonal
amcunts of the swaps and the outstarding principal ameounts of the bermowings

The hedge ineffectveness in these hedging relationshios can anse from:

= the effect of the counterparty and the Groups' cwn credil risk on the Fair value of the Swaps; and

difierences in repricing dates between the swaps and the borrowings.
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31. Financial risk management and fair values of financial instruments (continued)
{c)  Interest rate risk (continued)
{il} Interest rate profile
Tha faligwing tabie detads the interest rate profile of the Groups' net sterest-beaning assets and kabilites at

the end of the reporting period, after taking info account the effect of oross curmency swaps and interest rate
wwaps designated as cash flow o fair value hedging instruments (see () abovel.

2023 2002
Weighted Weighted
average avETage
interest inferest
rate 1A
S 5 million L § million
Nat fixed rate assets/(liabilities)
Deposits with barks and other linancial
mstitutions = - 406 252
Bank loans and ather boarmowings 2mn (37.265) 272 (37,333}
(37.265) (37,081}
MNet variable rate assets/{liabilities)
Cash at bank and in hand 0,03 21 003 73
Bank loans and ather borrowings 6.25 (12,897} 5.E5 (13,879
Bank overdratts - unsecured 5,88 {a4) = =
Customers' deposits 0.88 2.449) 0E3 (2,381]
{15.359) (16,187

{iii} Sensitivity analysis

A1 31 Decernber 2023, 1t 15 estimated that a general increasefdecrease af 100 hass pomts in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, would have decreasediincreased the Groups' prolit afler taxation and
revenue reserce by approdmately $116 million (2022 $121 malion). Other components of consolidated equity

would have increasedfdecreased by appeooamately 5268 mallon (2022 $331 malon) m response 1o the general
Increasafdecrease m interast rates,

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming that the change in mterest rates had oooered at
the etvd of t reporting period and hiad been appiied 1o the exposure 1o mlensst rale risk for both derdalive

and non-dervatve financial mitruments in exstence at that date. The analysis has been performed on the
same basis as for 20232

HE Electric wastments 5 neal Hegooer J00
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(d) Currency risk

The Groups are exposed to curency sk primarily through purchazes and bormrowings that are denominated ina
curmency other than the funcienal cemency of the Groups. The cummencies gving rnise 1o This risk ane primarily
United S1ates dollars and lapanese Yen,

(i

Hedges of currency risk

The Groups" policy i 1o hedge 100% of their foreign currency borrowings and 1o hedge their saimated
foreign currency exposures in respect of forecast purchases in accordance with their treasury palicy. The
Groups use forward foregn exchange contracts and CIoss currency Swiaps 1o manage currendy rsk and classify
as cash flow or fair value bedges and states them at fair value in accordance with the policy set out in

nede 3ia). The Groups desagnate the spet dement of farward forelgn exchange contracis 1o hedge the Groups”
currency risk. The fonward elements of forward exchange contracts are exduged from the dessgnation of the
hedging instrument and ane separately accounted for a5 & cost of hedging, which & recognised In eguity In a
cost of hedging reserve. The Groums’ policy s for the crifical terms of the forward eschange contracts 1o align
with the hedged em.

The Groups apply a hedge ratio of 1:1 and determine the existence of an economic relationship bebween the
foresard exchange contracts and the committed and forecast transactionsforesgn currency borrowings based
on thelr currency amounts and the timing of their respective cash flows,
The hedge meffectiveness in these hedging relationships can anse from:

L the effect of the counterparty’s and the Groups' cwn credit risk on the falr vaiue of the forward foraign
exchange contracts, and

«changes in the timing of the hedged transactions.
The Groups' bormowings are either hedged into Hong Kong dollars by ways of forward foreign exchange

coniracts and cross currency swaps of denominaled in Hong Eong dollars. Given this, the management does
not expect that there wouid be any significant currency risk assocated with the Groups' bamowings.
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31. Financial risk management and fair values of financial instruments (continued)
{d) Currency risk (continued)
{il} Exposure 1o eurrency risk

Thaet falowang tabse detadt the Groups' exposune at the end of the reportng penod to cumency sk amsing from
recognsed assets or Kabllities denominated in a cumency other than the functional cumrency of the Groups.

2023

‘million (expressad in original currencies) usD Py
Bank deposits and cash - 1
Trade and ather payables and contract labilities 196) (1,407)
Bank loans and other bormowings (2.272) -
(Gross exposure arising from recognised assets and fabiities (2,368) {1,4086)
Hotional amounts of forward ‘oreign exchange contracts

designated as hedging instruments 1,340 131
Notianal amounts of croas Curmency SwWaps designoted as

hedging instruments 950 -
et exposure anising from recognised assets and liabilibes {78) {1,275)

2022

‘million (expressed in ornginal curtencies) usp L
Bank deposits and cash EF) 2
Teade and other payables and contract liabilities {189) (1, 126)
Bank loans-and ather bormowings (2,250 -
GrOSS eposune ansing from recognised assets and labiities (2.407) (1,124)
Notional amounts of forward foreign exchange contracts

designated as hedging instruments 1,329 985
Naotional amounts of cross curency swaps designated as

hedping instruments 950 -
MRt exposune arsing from recognised assets and labilites 1128) 1138)

HE Electric wastments 5 neal Hegooer J00
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(iii) Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates that a 10 percent strengthaning in the following curmency against Hong Kong
dodlars a1 the énd of the reporting period would have increasedidecreased) the Groups' profit after txation
{and revenue reserve} and other companents of consalidated equity,

2023 2022
Effect on Effect on Effect on Effsct on
profit after olber prodin atter othet
taxation and components taxaton and componsants
B UE FRSEFE af equity TN Tesene of equity
Increase/ Increasel Increased Increasel
5 millicn (decrease) (decrease] (decrease) Ifecrease)
lapanese Yen - - 1 5

# 10 percent weakening i the above currency against Hang Kong dollars at the end of the reporting penod
would have had an equal but opposite effect on the Groups' profit sfuer taxaton (and revenue reservel and
other components of comclidated sauity.

Thiis serrsitivity analysis assumes thal the change in foreign exchange rates had been sppled to re-measure
these financial instruments held by the Groups which expose the Groups to cutrerdy risk at the end of the
reporting period, and that alf other vanables, in particular interes rates, remain constant. in this respect, it &
ansumed that the pegoed rate betwesn the Hong Kong doilar and the United States dollar would be materially
wnalfected by any changes in moverment in valse of the United States dollar against other currencies. The
analysis has been perlormed on the sarme basis as for 2022,
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31. Financial risk management and fair values of financial instruments (continued)

{e) Hedge accounting

The bollowing lables summarise the hedging instruments, hedged ibems and hedged risks of the Groups for the year
ended 31 Deceanber 2023 and 2022,

(it Cash flow hedges

X8
Changes in ol ot wndd
Loy amouet ol o raloatng uckn
hading imstrumus ircuded in rafiectines
Reriazn feaim Tnde
Wirightsd fracul francal oo slher
fad  aeestdl  unde Tde  wdw nd nethicovinn

wmrs by ececonet  edofe e ocebal Hedgg  Fedged  mogrisedin
ot nelrumints mat mrenable  [ubites  ublte reneed m  prelierien
Hetghy FETaTETS Maturiry date e Smilen  nlien  Smlkn  Smiien  Smifin  (mike  $mlfin § millen

{1} o e cmemary ik of ool ety bormomvings aned infierest v sk of varkable rate berrowings

Comegwasind  kegghen L84 DSY W - S m o =
s AEM NN

1) e Bnckig ey ik of it dnd Bt Bapdetivns
Roadisg g Engrgfon Seach ug

=
E
=
=

[ ] il e 00 beiew

1} For bedging camency rick of lonvign cumescy borowings

Frardbrsnpcing  Begrgon Seach {131} m = 1] " ki | 1] *
cortacty M N beicm

HE Electric nvwestmants
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i
Crarge i far e o
Canpry sl foi caeabafig bedge:
g Faumiet el L
Terniitwe Deriiative fade
Wegrtad fnrcd i - andoter
i Notod  mebamert sy e b
fard ool e -3 el il FETECMENED

gl g ronosmedl  meobe moromel ot Heleg  Reied  woopmedin
ol msureth Ex eevos Bble  kole e e ol
e e Aty defe wis  iodion  inden  Omllon  Gnior Jmlen P Ymien {nillon

11Ft Dy o ko e ey omig s o Vel it iy

CmormymEsed  Regrgtr IBN U 90 SUR - TR\ - {1 -
remicewan  NpNI

¥ Fer becgeng camenay rok ol commitesd ane foreced Sermecions

vl g oo Regrgher Se ol T2 £1] | L] m - = T
=] i X k
) e b oy ek of e ey Leeowee
Tl g adag  Wagglar mmh L1 ki) z . : 1 m z
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31. Financial risk management and fair values of financial instruments (continued)

(e} Hedge accounting (continued)

{il} Fair value hodges

X8
Dharges i ot waad
fat caloatng hadoe
oyl smeunt nchaded i Paffectses
Eariain Dot Tnde
erightad Franclil franil  ind other
HE PETURHI T [l Hee
irlsble e Tnde e n reflarivenen
priariies’ Notordl meesimed ol mecwew! et Hegwy Helged | sogielin
et amou! et womabls  fubites  UbBe  retemeny m  profiterien
ey iniramerty Natarity date mis  fmilen  fnlke  fmilln  Salkn  fmlln  fmilw el § millen
Ferwiand v kgt XM Suach ] =
=] beicm
bl E]
Carrying amount of hedged ms
[including acrumulated fairvalue  Accumulated far valus hedgs Ling item in the commalidated
hedge adjustnents) adjustments of hedged Rems statement of Frandal postion in
Hedged items § milien Smilion  which the hedged itens are incuded
Financial liasbiksie (145} - Trads and other payabli
and cortract liahiities
ptH]
[hares s Fa sl sed
for kg hesge
Camprg amourt nked neffechieren
[erusn Dot Tride
Wehisd frarmil fraecal oo other
g nEnm et japke Hedze
e o Trade e n ruffucturesy
puatey  Mofowl renoumel  adole menoned o Hedgeg Hedged  megnedin
g oo nen momaths  lbdte  Libige e s profior o
Fprg Primert. Mty dats e el Sl fmln  Smdon  Imion  Smdon  Smben §miicn
Forwad fowien euchurge N3 Seench ki - = * [ 61 i -
ey el
Fo ]
Carrying amount of hedged fems
{mcuding accumnulated fair valoe  Accurmdated far value Fedge Lirw: item in the comolidated
hedge adustments  adjusiments of hedged items staserrant of financial positian in
Hidign] hores § melon Smillion  swhich the hedged ibems are incladed
Firancial kabdities (286} 18 Track arcl other payables

and contract labdlities
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Maobe; The folioweng tabie provides mfommation on the wesghted sverage contract it of outstanding forsard foreign
anchange contracis at the erd of the reportng perod:

2023 2022
Weighted average conrac rabes
LIS0: HED TABST Ak
IPY HED 0.0543 00703
GEF HED - B3438
EUR: HED BSE4E BO340
P UsD 118.1725 1020011
GEP: LISD - 13138

(f}  Fair value measurement

Thi folieadng table presents the fair value of the Groups' financial insements measured at the end of the reporting
period on a recuming basis, categomed into the three-leved fair value hierarchy as defined in HXFRS 13; Far Value
Measurement, The kevel inta which a fair value measurement is classified o determined with reference 1o the
adsservability and significance of the inputs used in the valuation technlgue as follows:

= Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level 1 inputs Le. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
Tor identical Tinancial assets or lislslities at the measurement date

- Level 2 valuations! Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs | e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1,
and not using sgnificant unchsendable inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data is not
available

- Level 3 valuations! Fair value measured using significant unobeerable inputs

{i) Recurring fair value measurements

Level 2
2023 2022
haote 5 milllbar § milicn
Financial assets
Denvative financial mstruments:
— |ntetest rate swaps 3a) 602 a2
- Forward foresgn exchange contracts Aia) 136 479
738 1,451
Financial liabilities
Dedvative financial mstruments:
= Crogs cummency swags 3ial 93 41
= Infefesl rale swaps 3a) 6 -
= Forward foresgn exchange contracts Aa) 64 2
182 151
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31. Financial risk management and fair values of financial instruments (continued)

{f)  Fair value measurement (continued)
{il} Fair values of financial assets and liabilities carried at other than fair value
Trade and ather receivaties, trade and other payables and contract Rabilities, and abo external Domowngs
are carried at cost or amorised cost which are not materially different from their fair values as at
31 December 2023 and 2022,
(i) Waluation techniques and inputs in Level 2 falr value measurements
The fair values of forwarg forespn exchange contracts are determened using forward exchange market rates at

the end of the reporting period. The fair values of cross cunency swaps and interest rate swaps are detemined
by discounting the futune cash flows of the contracts at the current market inlarest ates.

32. Commitments

{a) The Grougs” capital commitments oulstanding ai 31 Decernber and not pnnlded for in the financial staternents were

as follows:
2023 022
5 millien % milfion
Contracted Tar,
Capital eependiture for propary, plant and equipment 5,832 6,702
Aunhorised but not contracted for:
Capital expanditure for property, plant and equipment 21,073 10,412

() A1 31 Decernber 2023, the Growns' share of capital commitments of a jeant vemure was §21 million (2022
$59 milion).

A1 31 Decenber 2023, the Grouns' share of (he lease and ather commitments of a jeint ventune approximated (o
$700 milion (2022 $1,627 million),

i3. Contingent liabilities

At 31 December 2023, the Groups had no guarantes or indemnity to extermal parties (2023 Kil)

HE Electric Bwastments Sneal Hegooer J023
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34. Material related party transactions

The Groups had the follewing material transactons with related parties during the yeas:

{a) Holder of Share Stapled Units
Support service charge recovered from Power Assets group

Othisr opemating oot included cuppert sorvice chatge meeyensd from Power Aspls groug amounting b

$45 mallion (2022: $43 million] for provision of the support sensces and office laclities to Power Assets group. The
support service charge was based on the total costs incumred in the provision or procurement of the provision of the
senvioes and facdities and aliocated 1o Power Assets group on a fair and eguitabla basis, tzking into account the time
spent by the ridevan | personnel when providing such services.

At 31 December 2023, the total outstanding balance recervable from Power Assets group was 36 million 2022
b malkan),

(b} Joint venture

{il  The details of Shareholder Loan Facility provided to HELTL by the Groups and the outstanding loan balance a5
at 31 December 2023 are disclosed in note 19,

{il}  Interest income recenvedirecerable from HELTL n respect of the Shareholder Loan Faciity amounted to
336 million {2022: $27 million),

fiil}  Under a joim Development Agreement entered into between HE Becinc, CAPCO and HELTL for the
devalopment of LNG terminal, HK Blectre shd CAPCO will perfarm prapct managament and provide spports
to HELTL in the development and constructon of the LNG termmal. In 2023, HELTL reimbursed related costs of
$12 million (2022: $11 million) 10 HK Electnc

(vl Under & Torminal Use Agreomont anlened into bebween HE Eloctric, CAPCD and HELTL, Operational Senvice
Charges and Facility Senice Charges were recovered by HELTL amounted to 3184 million (2022: 33 milkon)
and $35 million (2022: 51 milllan) respectively.

) Under a Secandment Agreement and a Masier Service Agreement entened into between HE Eleciric and

HELTL, HiX Electric will provide certain corporate support services to HELTL. in 2023, sendce fees aof
18 million (2022: 31 millon were charged to HELTL,

(¢} Key management personnel remuneration
Rermaneration for key management personnel of the Groups are dischased In note 12,

(d} Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to connected transactions

The related party transactions in respect of note 34{a) above constitute continuing connected transactions as defined
in Chapter 14 of the Lsting Rules. However, the transactions ane exempl from the diclosune requinsments in
Chapier 144 of the Listing Rules.
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Financial Statements
of the Trust and of the Company

[Expresied i Hordg Kong dollars unléss ofhietase Indicated)

35. Statement of financial position of the Company

2023 2022
Note 5 million 5 milhon
Nen-current assets
rvestments in subsidianes 62,349 61,453
Derivatrve financial Instruments 241 408
62,590 61,871
Current assets
Trade and ather receivables 63 50
Bank depaosits and cash 1 1
64 &1
Current liabilities
Trade and other payablas (L] {95)
Mot current liabilities {28) 34)
Total assats loss currant liabilitios: 63,562 61,837
MNon-currant liabilities
Bank |nans (B,681) (B,&73)
Derivatiee financial Insthaments {10} 33}
(8,591) (B,706)
Nat assats 53,871 53,131
Capital and reserves A04a)
Share capita 8 a
Reserves 53,863 53,123
Total equity 53,871 53,131

Approved and authonsed for lssue by the Boards on 19 March 2024,

Cheng Che Ying, Francis Chan Loi Shun
Director Divector

HE Electric Invvestmants
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36. Substantial holders of Share Stapled Units of the Trust Group

37.

The Share Staphed Units of thes Trust Group are listed: on the Main Board af the Stock Exchange dnd boe vadely hold by

the public. Power Assets, State Grid Corporation of China and Qatar Investment Authority hold approsimately 3337 %,
21.00% and 19.90% of the ssued Shane Stapbed Units respectively as at 31 December 2023 and are considered substantlal
hiolders of Share Stapled Units of the Trust Group.

Critical accounting judgements and estimates

The methads, estimates and judgements the Directors used in applying the Groups' accounting pefcies have a significant
impact en the Groups’ finandal position and operatng results. Some of the accounting polickes reguire the Groups 10 apply
estimates and prdgements on matters that are mbherently uncertain, Certain oitical accounting judgements in applying the
Groups' accounting policles are described below.

{a) Depreciation and amortisation

Froperty, plant and equipment are depreciated on & swraight-line basis over their estmated useful boes after taking
nto account the estimated residual value. The Groups revew annually the useful e of an asset and is residual
value, if any. Interests in beasehold land are armortised on a straighi-kne bass. over the shorter of the estimated wseful
frees of the leased assets and the unexpired lease tevm. Both the period and methods of amortisation are revewed
annually, The depreciation and amorisation expenses for future penods are adursted if there ane significant changes
from pravious estimates

Impairment

The Groups review at the end of each reportng penod to sdentify any indication that the Groups' property, plant
and equipment and interests in leasehold land may be impained and test annually whether goodwaill bas suffered any
impatment in accordance with the accounting policy (see note 3thie]),

In considering the impairment losses that may be requined for the property, plant and equipment, infenests m
beasehold land and goodwill of the Geawps, ther recoveralble amounts need to be determined. The recoverable
arrount ks the greater of the fair value less costs of disposal and the vadue in use. |t s ditficult to precisely estimate
the fair value less costs of disposal because quoted market prces for these assets may not be readily avadable, in
datermining the value in wse, expected cash flows gererated by the assets or CGU 1o which the goodwill has been
allocated are discounted to ther present vadue, which requires significant judgement. The Grougs e all readily
avalable information in determening an amount that & a reasonab'e approximation of the recoveraste amount,

Amy Increase or decrease In empasrment |osses, recognised &5 set out above, would affect the nat profit in future
years

See nobi 17 fof key sisumplions used i goodwill impairment et for the year ended 31 December 2023

286/340



EDINETOOOO
Oo0O0000000000000000o000000O0ondn(E30309)
Oooooooooooobooooooad

Financial Staternents

Notes to the Financial Statements
of the Trust and of the Company

(Expressed in Horg Kong dollams unless otherase indicated)

38. Possible impact of amendments, new standards and interpretations issued but not
yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2023

Lip 1o thie date of ssue of these financal statements, the HKICPA has ssued a number of amendments 1o HKFRSG
which are not yet effectve for the year ended 31 December 2023 and which have not been acopted in these financial
daternents. These developments include the following which may be relevant ta the Groups.

Effective for

accounting periods

beginning on or after

* Amendmenls to HKAS 1, Cleefication of Liabililies a3 Current or Nen-curmént 1 larusary 2024
= Amendimenls o HEAS 1, Mon-curent Liabidities with Covenarily 1 Jarweary 2024
* Amendments 1o HKAS 21, Lack of Eechangealdky 1 Jaruary 2025

The Groups are in the process of making an awsessment of what 1he impact of these amendments is axpectad to be in the
period of inkial application. 5o far it has concluded that the adeption of the above is unlikely to have & significant irmpact
on the Groums results of operations and financial position,

HE Electric wastments 5 neal Hegooer J00
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2023 12 31
118,540 2,292,564
69,562 1,345,329
48,978 947,235
8,836,200,000
5.54 107
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
11,406 10,793 11,344 10,389 10,739
4,976 4,509 4,845 4,140 4,213
(1,360) (961) (800) (971) (1,004)
3,616 3,548 4,045 3,169 3,209
(646) (629) (735) (568) (614)
2,970 2,919 3,310 2,601 2,595
186 35 @G377) 131 (268)
HK
3,156 2,954 2,933 2,732 2,327
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
79,824 78,960 76,740 74,434 72,416
33,623 33,623 33,623 33,623 33,623
2,600 3,125 2,118 1,781 1,500
(2.625) (233) (3,470) (6,612) (8,069)
113,422 115,475 109,011 103,226 99,470
(63,774) (65,230) (59,553) (54,757) (50, 120)
(670) (912) (1,065) (726) (878)
48,978 49,333 48,393 47,743 48,472
8 8 8 8 8
48,970 49,325 48,385 47,735 48,464
48,978 49,333 48,393 47,743 48,472
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HEC
10
HEC 2019 2033 12 31 15
HEC
2023 2022
HEC
HEC HEC
HEC
HEC
HIBOR HEC
12 31 10
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
11,321 | 10,724 | 11,312 10,363 | 10,694 | 11,541| 11,621| 11,373| 11,165 11,165
5,401 6,922 3,122 1,823 2,051 2,696 1,904 1,206 1,861 2,994
131 111 73 162 77 115 93 79 74 63
.................................. 16,853 | 17,757 | 14,507 | 12,348 | 12,822 14.352| 13.618| 12,658 | 13,100 14,222
o] (BBOD)(8,420))  (4.778)]  (3.453)f | (3,842)|  (4.530)]  (3.785) (3,105) (3.697)  (4.818)
e @0 @aT02)) (L,735)) (L,697))  (1,723))  (1,656)f  (1,592)f  (1,460)f  (1.,277)f  (1,143)
e @020 (2262 @, a8 o) 9 @1 .. 838 . (789
@an| @) @m0y Clamy| @234 T @2as)| @210y @aazn| T 2.osa)| T (1.988)
e AeTBT ) AST0 [ 4,843 ) 4,006 4,151f 5,082) 5,312 f 5,155) 5,234 5,484
a3 syl 6| ey ey sy 698y (1209 (L.140y|  (1.009)
_____________________________________ 3,624 | 3,911 | 4,173| 3,310 3,463| 4,475| 4,614 3,946 4,004 4,475
........................................ 1,328 1,017 926) 1,018] 1,043 983 873 821 729 690
10 1 1
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HEC
10
12 31

895 793 477 278 42
958 ....... 882 ...... 1 045 ........ 887 ........ 809 ........ 593 ........ 648 ........ 454 ........ 580 ........ 668
496 1,042 596 616 641 539 784 1,034 314 352

........................................ 692]....1.1%8 620 430 522 ors o 624 525 372
........................................ ) ROt INNOE ) SO ) ROOON it MO 4 JORRRNc) RORR o8 (RN 1 [
vl N B s B Ry B
o RS e IR BN RS S RSt I N et et
.............................. R T R B B e BT et

(889) (149) (506) (541) (577) (137) (214) (351) (360) (219)
(11,318)| (10,838)| (10,622)| (9,930) (14.207) (8,039 (9,611) (11,037)| (9,062)| (6,110)
8.888) (5,605) (8.286)| (8,222)| (12,035) (5.993) (5,877) (8.524) (870) 581

57,255 59,274 53,187 49,996 43,248 46,892 46,049 42,935 49,506 50,799

@,389) (1,430)| (1,314) (1,122)]  (955) 41| (503)

(52,430 (53.752) (47,925)| (45,463) (38.364) (42,769)| (4a1,667) (38.831) (46,100)| (47,129)

(630) 872)|  (1,050) (698) (848) (620) (316) @4 (204) (288)
@D (13) @ (©)] s (6) @ @ @
® @n (14) (20) (16) (22) (18) as (10) ®)
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HEC
10

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

GTS7 L11 2022
GTS7 2020 2021 3,272
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Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited
HK
Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited HK

HK
HK

183 17 1712-1716
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong

KY1-1111 2681
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.0. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands

183 17 1712-1716
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen”s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong

CCASS
CCASS CCASS
CCASS
CCASS

HK

HK

HK
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38 59 328

23 103
KPMG 193

2024 29
1.00 19.34
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62,000 2022 60,000
762,985 2022 752,564 HK

383

2023 2022

12 31

135
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Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
of HK Electric Investments Manager Limited

For the year ended 31 December #0273
{Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
2023 2022
hole 5 ]
Revenue - -
Adrmarsirative oxporses -
Profit befora taxation 4 -
Income tax g -

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year

The rotes on pages 177 10 181 lorm part of these inancial statements
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Financial Statements

Statement of Financial Position
of HK Electric Investments Manager Limited

it 37 Decernbar 2023
{Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2023 2042

Mote 1 i
Current assets
Amoun] due from imrmediate holding company T 1 1
Net assats _ 1 i
Capital and resarves
Share capital B 1 1
Reserves - -
Total equity 1 1

Approved and suthorsed for nsue by the Board of Dinectors on 19 March 2024

Cheng Cho Ying, Francis Chan Lol Shun
[Hrector Lirecior

Thie nates on pages 177 1o 181 form part of thesa financial statements.

HE Electric Invvestmants
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Statement of Changes in Equity
of HK Electric Investments Manager Limited

For the ypar g ed 31 December 2023
iong Kong de

|Express

Share capital Reserves Total
5 5 5
Balance at 1 Jarwsary 2022 1 - 1

Changis in squity for 2022

Profit and total comprehersive income for the year

Balance at 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 1 - 1
Changes in equity for 2023

Profit and toial comprehensive income for the year - - -

_B_ahnm at 31 Dﬁ:emharlﬂl’l 1 - 1

The rotes on pages 177 10 181 lorm part of these inancial statements
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of HK Electric Investments Manager Limited

2 yads ended 31 Dece
{Expressed in Hong Kong

Operating activities
sl cash generated from operating activities

Investing activities
MNet cash use In nvesting actiities

Financing activities
Ml cash wried in Tinancing actiitiel

Met change In cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equavalents at 1 Jamsary

Cash and eash squivalants at 31 Decembar

023 2032

Thie nates on pages 177 1o 181 form part of thesa financial statements.

HE Electric Invvestmants
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Notes to the Financial Statements
of HK Electric Investments Manager Limited

(Expressed in Homg Kong dollars unless othenwise indicated)

1. General information

HE Elactric investments Manager Limited (the " Company™) was incorporated in Hong Kong under the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance on 25 September 2013 and is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiany of Power Assets, which is
incorparated in Hong Kong wwath its shares lsted on The Stock Exchange of Hong Eong Limited and traded in the form of
armerican Depositary Receipts on the OTC Mavkets Group Inc. n the United S1ates. The address of the reqistered office and
the principal place of busmess of the Company Is Hongkong Electric Centre, 44 Eennedy Road, Hong Kong.

The prncepal acthity of the Company s administenng HE Electnc Investments (the *Trust® ), in its capaoty as
trustee-manager of the Trust. The Trust was constituted as a trust on 1 January 2014 by a Hong Kong law governed Trust
Deed entered into between the Company, as the rustee-marager of the Trust, and HK Elactric Investments Limited.

The costs and expanses of adminstering the Trust may be deducied from all property and righis of any lond whatsoever
which are heid on trust for the regstered holders of units of the Trust but, commansurate with its specific and imited role,
the Company wil not recelve ary fee for administering the Trust.

2. Material accounting policies

{a) Statement of compliance

These financial staterments hawve been prepared in accordance with a8 applcable Hong Kong Fnancial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs™), which |s a collective term that includes all applicable indnidual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Eong Accounting Standards (“HKAS™) and Interpratations ssued by the Hong Kong institute

of Certified Public Acoowntants ("HKICPA"], accountng principles generally accepted m Hong Kong and the
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Crdinance. These financial statements also comply with the applicable
desclosure provisions of the Rules Gowerning the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
Matesial accounting policies acopted by the Company are dischosed below,

The HEXC PA has issued @ number of amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early adoption for
the current accounting periad of the Company. Note 3 provides information on any changes In accounting policies
resulting from initial applcation of these developments 1o the extent that they are relevant to the Company for the
current and priof accounting perods reflected in these finandal statements.
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Financial Staternents

Notes to the Financial Statements
of HK Electric Investments Manager Limited

(Expressed in Horg Kong dollams unless otherase indicated)

2. Material accounting policies {continued)

{b) Basis of preparation and presentation of the financial statements
The measurerment basis used in the preparation ol the financlal taterments 4 the historical cost basis

The preparation of financlal sistements i conformity with HKFRSs requires management to make |udgements,
estmates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reporied amoums of assets. iabilites, intome
and expenses. The estmates and asscoated assumptions ame based on histoncal expenence and vancas other factors
that are belleved to be reasonable under the cecumstances, the results of which form the basts of making the

uckpements about carmying values of assets and abilities that are not readi’y apparent from other sources. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumpisons are revieveed on an cngong basis. Revisons 1o accouniing estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimase Is revised IF the revision affects only that penod, or in the penod af the
reishon and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The Trust Deed requires the Company lon behalf of the Trustl to distrioute: 100%: of the dasdends, dstributions and
other amounts recesed m respect of the ordinary shares from HK Electric Investments Limited, after deduction of all
amons penmitted (o be deducled oo paid under the Trist Deed,

In ecoordance with the Trust Deed, a distnbotions statement shall be included in the financial statements of the
Company. & the details of the distribution has already been presented in note 14 to the consolidated financial

stalernents of the Trust and of HX Electric Investmants Limited cn page 124, no distributions statement is therefore
presented in these fmancia staterments,

fed  Cash flow statement

The Compary did not have any cash flows durng the current and prior years noe did it hove ary cash o cash
equivalents at any point threughout the current and pror years.

HE Electric wastments 5 neal Hegooer J00
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(d) Related parties

{ly A person of a close member of that person’s farnily s refated 1o the Company if that pemon:

1)

(2

(3

has conired of joint control over the Company;
has significant Influence over the Company, or

= a member of the key management personnel of the Company or the Company™s parent.

) Arvenity i related to the Company IF amy of te following conditions apply!

[§ 3]

(3]

fh

(5}

(&)

[TH]

(8}

The entity and the Company am members of the same group (which means that each parent, subsidiasy
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

D gnitlity b5 a podnt verilie o an assahate of the ciher entity (on & joa venluie of an assodlate of 3
member of & group of which the other entity s a member).

Both entities are joint wentures of the sams thisd party,
One entity is a pont venture of a third entity and the other entity s an assoclale of the third entity.

The entity & a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employess of either the Comipany or an
entity related o the Company.

The entity is controlied oo jointly controlled by a person idantified in note 2(dXi)

i person identtfied m note 20dN0(1) has ssgnificant inflience over the entity or 5 a member of the key
management personnel of the entily lor of a parent of the entity).

The antity, ar any member of a group of which it s a part, provides key management personnel services
to tha Company or 1o the Compary's parend.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected o Influence, or be
inflwenced by, that person in thegr dealings with the entity.
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Financial Staternents

Notes to the Financial Statements
of HK Electric Investments Manager Limited

(Expressed in Horg Kong dollams unless otherase indicated)

3. Changes in accounting policies

The HEICPA has [ssued a number of amendments to HEFRSS that are first effective fior the current accounting pericd of the
Company. The adoption of these amendments 1o HKEFRSs has no material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

The Company has not appled any new stanoard, amendment or inerpretaton that is not effectrve for the curent
accouniing period

4. Profit before taxation
Auditor's remuneration of $62,000 (2022: $60,000) and all ather expenses of the Company which were mcurred for the
administering of the Trust of §762 985 (2022 $752 564) for the year have been borne by HE Elactric Investments Limited,
which has waived its right of recovery thareaf,

Except for the above, the Compary did not incur any adminisiratve expenses during the current srd prios vears.

5. Income tax

Ha peawisian foe Hong Kong Pralits Tax has been made in the financal statements for the current and prior yeais as the
Company did not have any assessable profits,

6. Directors' emoluments
No directors’ emolurments is disclosed pursuan? to section 383(1).of the Hong Kang Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of

thet Companies (Disclosure of information about Benelits of Directors) Regulation, a5 no fees or ather emoluments wene
paid to the Directors during the current and prioe years.

7. Amount due from immediate holding company

Amours due from immediate holding company @ unseoured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

8. Share capital

2023 I_IJ'_ZI
Humber of Humiser of
shares % shaves i
Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid:
At 1 lanuary and 31 December 1 1 1 1

In:accordance with saction 135 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, the crdinary shares of the Company do not have
a par valuea.

HE Electric Bwastments Sneal Hegooer J023
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Capital management

The primary objectives of the Company when managing capital are to sateguard the Company's ability 1o continue as

a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for the sole member and benefits for other stakenolders. As
the Company is part of a langer group. the Company’s sources of additional capital and poicies for distribution of excess
cagilal may a'so be affecied by the group’s capital management obgectives:

The Company defines “capital® as including all components of equity. The Company actively and reqularly raviews and

manages its capital structure to support its futwe capital requirements and operations. The Company has a specific and
limited rode 10 administer the Trust. Al its cagital requirements are fully supported by the whtimate holding compary

The Company was not sublect 10 externaly imposed cagital reguirements during the current and priar years.

Immediate and ultimate controlling parties
At 31 Decemaer 2023, the Directors conuder the smmediate and ultimate holding companies of the Company 1o be

Sure Grade Limited and Power Assets which are incorporated in the British Viegin lslands and Hong Kong, respectively,
Fower Assats produces Tinanclal statements available for publc usa,

Financial risk management

The Company wis not exqpodsed to any significant credit, liquidity, mierest rate and currency msks in the normal course of its
busaness durang the current and prior yeas,

Material related party transactions

Except for the transactions and balances disdosed ebewhere in the financial statemens, the Company did nat enter into
matzal related party transactions,

Passible impact of amendments, new standards and interpretations issued but not
yet effective for the yvear ended 31 December 2023

Up to the date of issue of these financdzl stacements, the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments to HEFRSs
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2023 and which have not been adopted in these fimancial
statements.

The Company is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of these amendments s expectad to be in the

pericad of invtal application, So far, it has concluded that the adoption of tham is unlikely 1o have a significant impact on
the Company's results of operations and financal position.
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Holders of Share Stapled Units of HK Electric Investments and HK Electric Investments
Limited

(HK Electric Investments is a trust constituted under the laws of Hong Kong; HK Electric Investments Limited is incorporated in
the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of HK Electric Investments (the “Trust”), HK Electric Investments Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Trust Group”) and of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out
on pages 92 to 170 (together referred to as the “consolidated financial statements of the Trust and of the Company”).

As explained in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements of the Trust and of the Company, the consolidated financial
statements of the Trust and of the Company together comprise the consolidated statement of financial position of the

Trust Group and of the Group as at 31 December 2023, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement of the
Trust Group and of the Group for the year then ended and notes, comprising material accounting policy information and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements of the Trust and of the Company give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Trust Group and of the Group as at 31 December 2023 and of the Trust Group’s and the
Group’s consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Trust Group and of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) together with any ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Trust and of the Company in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the Trust and of the Company of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Trust and of the Company as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Refer to note 16 to the consolidated financial statements of the Trust and of the Company and the accounting

policies 3(f), (g) and (h)ii).

The key audit matter

A wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, The
Hongkong Electric Company, Limited (“HK Electric”), is
engaged in the generation, transmission and distribution
of electricity in Hong Kong (the “Hong Kong electricity
business”), which requires substantial capital investment
in property, plant and equipment.

The Scheme of Control Agreement entered into by HK
Electric and the Government of the HKSAR provides for
HK Electric to earn a permitted return calculated based
on 8% of average net fixed assets. The Development
Plan under the Scheme of Control Agreement governs
HK Electric’s capital expenditure on the Hong Kong
electricity business over the Scheme of Control
Agreement period.

HK Electric’s property, plant and equipment is
specialised in nature and certain items are self-
constructed. The cost of self-constructed property, plant
and equipment comprises, inter alia, the costs of
materials and direct labour, overheads capitalised and
borrowing costs. The Directors have implemented
internal controls over the capitalisation of costs in
property, plant and equipment.

We identified assessing the existence and accuracy of
property, plant and equipment as a key audit matter
because property, plant and equipment is the most
significant asset of the

Trust Group and the Group and is critical to the
operations of Hong Kong electricity business and
because, due to the terms and conditions of the Scheme
of Control Agreement, property, plant and equipment is a
key focus of management and the users of the
consolidated financial statements of the Trust and of the
Company.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our audit procedures to assess the existence and
accuracy of property, plant and equipment included the
following:

obtaining an understanding of and assessing the
design, implementation and operating effectiveness
of key internal controls over the existence and
accuracy of property, plant and equipment;

assessing the Trust Group’s and the Group’s
capitalisation policy for expenditure relating to
property, plant and equipment with reference to the
requirements of the prevailing accounting standards;

selecting a sample items of property, plant and
equipment acquired and capitalised during the year
ended 31 December 2023 and inspecting relevant
underlying documentation to assess whether these
items met the criteria for capitalisation with reference
to the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards and to evaluate the date on which costs
were capitalised;

assessing whether the additions to property, plant
and equipment for the year ended 31 December 2023
were consistent with the Development Plan agreed
between HK Electric and the Government of the
HKSAR which governs the level of capital
expenditure over a period of time;

forming an expectation of the value of costs
capitalised for the current year based on the prior
year's capitalisation ratio and the level of capital work
undertaken during the current year, comparing our
expectation with the actual costs capitalised for the
current year and discussing with management the
nature of and reasons for any significant variances;
and

physically inspecting a sample of additions to
property, plant and equipment during the current
year.
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Assessment of potential impairment of goodwill relating to the Hong Kong electricity business

Refer to note 17 to the consolidated financial statements of the Trust and of the Company and the accounting

policies 3(e) and (h)(ii).

The key audit matter

The Company acquired the Hong Kong electricity
business operated by HK Electric from Power Assets
Holdings Limited in 2014. The goodwill arising on this
acquisition amounted to HK$33.6 billion.

Management assessed goodwill for potential impairment
as at 30 November 2023 by comparing the carrying
amount of

the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated with the recoverable amount determined by
assessing the value-in-use (“VIU") by preparing a
discounted cash flow forecast. Preparing a discounted
cash flow forecast involves the exercise of significant
management judgement, in particular in forecasting
revenue growth and operating profit and in determining
an appropriate discount rate.

We identified the assessment of potential impairment of
goodwill relating to the Hong Kong electricity business as
a key audit matter because the carrying value of the
goodwill is material to the consolidated financial
statements of the Trust and of the Company and also
because management’s assessment of the value of the
future cash flows expected to be derived from the Hong
Kong electricity business involves certain critical
judgements in respect of the assumptions made which
are inherently uncertain and could be subject to
management bias.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our audit procedures to assess potential impairment of
goodwill relating to the Hong Kong electricity business
included the following:

evaluating management’s cash flow forecast by
comparing the assumptions adopted by management
with our understanding of the Hong Kong electricity
business and by comparing key assumptions and
estimates with relevant underlying documentation,
which included comparing future revenue growth and
operating profit with the Development Plan agreed
between HK Electric with the Government of the
HKSAR and comparing components of the discount
rate with market data;

evaluating management’s rationale for adopting cash
flow projections over a period greater than five years
with reference to the guidance in the prevailing
accounting standards;

involving our internal valuation specialists to assist us
in assessing the methodology applied by
management in its discounted cash flow forecasts
with reference to the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards and whether the discount rates
adopted in the discounted cash flow forecasts were
comparable with those of companies in the same
industry;

performing sensitivity analyses on the discount rate
and terminal growth rate applied and the assumptions
for revenue adopted by management in the cash flow
forecast to assess the impact of changes in these key
assumption on the conclusion reached in
management’s impairment assessment and
considering whether there were any indicators of
management bias in the assumption adopted; and

comparing the actual results for the current year with
management's forecasts for the previous year in
order to assess the historical accuracy of the
management’s forecasting process.
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Information other than the consolidated financial statements and auditor's report thereon

The Directors of HK Electric Investments Manager Limited (the “Trustee-Manager”, in its capacity as the trustee-manager of the
Trust) and the Directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all the
information included in the annual report, other than the consolidated financial statements of the Trust and of the Company and
our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements of the Trust and of the Company does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Trust and of the Company, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements of the Trust and of the Company or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the consolidated financial statements

The Directors of the Trustee-Manager and the Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements of the Trust and of the Company that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the Directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements of the Trust and of the Company that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements of the Trust and of the Company, the Directors are responsible for assessing
the Trust Group’s and the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Trust Group and the
Group or to cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Directors are assisted by the Audit Committees of the Trustee-Manager and of the Company in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Trust Group’s and the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements of the Trust and of the
Company as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements of the Trust and of the
Company, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Trust Group’s and the
Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the Directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Trust Group’s and the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements of
the Trust and of the Company or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Trust Group and the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements of the Trust and of the
Company, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements of the Trust and of the Company
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Trust Group and the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements of the Trust and of the
Company. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with the Audit Committees of the Trustee-Manager and of the Company regarding, among other matters, the

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committees of the Trustee-Manager and of the Company with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committees of the Trustee-Manager and of the Company, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Trust and of the Company

of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Lee Wai Shun, Wilson.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants 8th
Floor, Prince’s Building 10 Chater
Road

Central, Hong Kong

19 March 2024

336/340



EDINETOOOO
O00o0oOoooooooo00o0O00ooo0oboOo0noOo(E30309)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

HK

173 181 HK

2023 12 31

2023 12 31

HK
HK

337/340



EDINETOOOO
O00o0oOoooooooo00o0O00ooo0oboOo0noOo(E30309)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

405

KPMG

10

2024 19

338/340



EDINETOOOO
O00o0oOoooooooo00o0O00ooo0oboOo0noOo(E30309)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Sole Member of HK Electric Investments Manager Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of HK Electric Investments Manager Limited (the “Company”) set out on pages 173 to
181, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023, the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the cash flow statement for the year then ended and notes,
comprising material accounting policy information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at

31 December 2023 and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the financial statements and auditor's report thereon

The Directors of the Company (in its capacity as the trustee-manager of HK Electric Investments) and of HK Electric
Investments Limited are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all the information included in the
annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the financial statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the
Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
Directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely
to you, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of materialmisstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit proceduresresponsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficientand appropriate to providea
basis for our opinion.The risk of not detectinga material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit proceduresthat are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purposeof expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’sinternal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the Directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’'use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company'’s ability to continueas a going concern. If we concludethat a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor'sreport to the related disclosures in the financialstatements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion.Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtainedup to the date of our auditor's
report. However,future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overallpresentation, structure and content of the financialstatements, including the disclosures, and whether
the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achievesfair presentation.

We communicate with the Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timingof the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal controlthat we identify during our audit.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

19 March 2024
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